
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
It is the intention of the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) in all respects.  If you need special assistance with respect to the agenda or other written materials forwarded to the members 
of the Board for consideration at the public meeting, or if as an attendee or a participant at this meeting you will need special 
assistance, the District will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please contact Athena Medina at (909) 793-
2503 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to inform her of your particular needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  
Please advise us at that time if you will need accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 

SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

October 31, 2012 – 1:30 p.m. 
 

 Location--1630 West Redlands Boulevard, Suite A, Redlands, California 
 
Note: Copies of staff reports and other documents relating to the items on this agenda are on file at the District office 
and are available for public review during normal District business hours.  New information relating to agenda topics 
listed, received, or generated by the District after the posting of this agenda, but before the meeting, will be made 
available upon request at the District office and in the Agenda Package on the Districts website. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL  
 
1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the 
jurisdiction of the Board; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the 
agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) Section 54954.2 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
2. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

Section 54954.2 provides that a legislative body may take action on items of business not 
appearing on the posted agenda under the following conditions:  (1) an emergency situation 
exists, as defined in Section 54956.5; (2) a need to take immediate action and the need for 
action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the agenda being posted; and (3) 
the item was posted for a prior meeting occurring not more than five calendar days prior to 
the date action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the 
meeting at which action is being taken.   

 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING RELATED TO REDISTRICTING 
 Brief Staff Presentation (Page 4) 
 Open Public Hearing 
 Receive Public Comments or Testimony 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Consider Adoption Resolution No. 484 
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Elections Code section 22000 a) Each district required by its authorizing act to adjust division 
boundaries pursuant to this section shall, by resolution, after each federal decennial census, and 
using that census as a basis, adjust the boundaries of any divisions so that the divisions are, as far as 
practicable, equal in population and in compliance with Section 1973 of Title 42 of the United States 
Code (VOTING RIGHTS ACT), as amended, to the extent those provisions are applicable. In 
adjusting the boundaries of the district, the board may give consideration to the following factors: (1) 
topography, (2) geography, (3) cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity, and compactness of territory, and 
(4) community of interests of the district. This section does not apply to districts in which only 
landowners vote for directors or whose directors are all elected at large or appointed. (b) The 
resolution specified in subdivision (a) shall be adopted by a vote of not less than a majority of the 
directors. 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Approval of Board Minutes, October 10, 2012 (Page 9) 
2. Ratify Commendatory  Resolution No. 483, Honoring Bob Martin (Page 17) 

 
 

5. ACTION ITEMS, NEW BUSINESS 
  

A. 2012 AUDIT PRESENTATION (Page 18) 
Recommendation:  The Ad Hoc Audit Committee recommends the Board review and accept 
the 2012 Audit Report presented by Charles Fedak & Company. 
 

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL COLLABORATIVE AGREEMENT WITH SAN 
BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (SBVMWD) AND 
WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (WMWD) (Page 71) 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board approve the final agreement with 
SBVMWD and WMWD and authorize Board President to execute the agreement. 
 
 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 

A. Rules of Order (Page 93) 
B. DFR Application Presentation 
C. Santa Ana Sucker Final Decision Review (Page 94) 
D. Future Agenda Items & Staff Task requests from Directors 
E. Identify dates for Resources Committee Meeting and Ad Hoc Sphere of Influence Committee 

Meeting 
 

 
7. MONTHLY BOARD MEMBER COMMITTEE ACTIVITY REPORTS, AND/OR 

COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS 
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8. UPCOMING MEETINGS:    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

9.  CLOSED SESSION  
 
1. The Board may convene in Closed Session to discuss pending litigation, under 

Government Code section 54956.9(a), Alechman v. City of Redlands, et al., San 
Bernardino County Superior Court Case No. CIVDS1210203.   

 
2. Under authority of Government Code section 54956.9 (c), the Board may meet in Closed 

Session to decide whether to initiate litigation. 
 

10. ADJOURN MEETING.  The next regular Board meeting will be on November 14, 2012 
at 1:30 p.m., at District Headquarters, 1630 W. Redlands Blvd., Redlands, CA. 

1. November 1, 2012 ACWA\JPIA Sexual Harassment Training, 9:00 
a.m. -11 a.m. 

2. November 5, 2012 Basin Technical Advisory Committee, 1:30 p.m. 

3. November 6, 2012 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors Meeting, 2:30 p.m. 

4. November 8, 2012 Upper Santa Ana Water Resources Association, 
9:30 a.m.  

5. November 12, 2012 Office Closed in Observance of Veterans Day 

6. November 19, 2012 Association of San Bernardino County Special 
Districts Dinner, 6:00 p.m. (Victorville) 

7. November 20, 2012 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors Meeting, 2:30 p.m. 

8. November 22-23, 2012 Office Closed in Observance of Thanksgiving 
Day 

9. December 4-7, 2012 ACWA Fall Conference, San Diego  
 

10. December 12, 2012 Holiday Luncheon and Board Meeting, 10:00 
a.m. 
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   Memorandum No. 1133 

To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   General Manager, Daniel B. Cozad 
 
Date:  October 31, 2012 
 
Subject: Redistricting Into Five New Divisions 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board convene the public hearing and consider any written or oral comments and 
adopt Resolution No. 484 ordering the reduction in the number of member from seven to five and setting 
the boundaries of the new divisions.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The District is required to review Division Boundaries after the decennial US Census.  All political 
bodies use the same information from the US Census Bureau.  The purpose of the redistricting is to 
insure each Division of District is as nearly equal in population as may be.   
 

Elections Code section 22000 
a) Each district required by its authorizing act to adjust division boundaries pursuant to this section shall, 
by resolution, after each federal decennial census, and using that census as a basis, adjust the 
boundaries of any divisions so that the divisions are, as far as practicable, equal in population and in 
compliance with Section 1973 of Title 42 of the United States Code (VOTING RIGHTS ACT), as amended, 
to the extent those provisions are applicable. In adjusting the boundaries of the district, the board may 
give consideration to the following factors: (1) topography, (2) geography, (3) cohesiveness, contiguity, 
integrity, and compactness of territory, and (4) community of interests of the district. This section does 
not apply to districts in which only landowners vote for directors or whose directors are all elected at 
large or appointed. 
(b) The resolution specified in subdivision (a) shall be adopted by a vote of not less than a majority of 
the directors. 
 

The District is currently comprised of seven divisions.  The District’s population in the 2010 census is 
estimated at 227,529 persons with seven divisions the ideal division would contain 32,504 persons.  The 
current boundaries contain between 30,397 and 35,366 persons.  Division 3 is the highest above the 
ideal and Division 1 is the lowest above the ideal.  Based on this deviation the Board is required to 
redistrict to equalize the divisions.
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In October 2010 the Board passed Resolution No. 463 stating the Boards intent to move from seven 
divisions to five divisions.  SB-235 authored by and supported by the District provides for this change of 
divisions without a vote of the entire District.  This law went into effect on January 1, 2012.  This law 
requires the District vote to make the change more than 180 days preceding the election of a director.   
 
At the September 12th Board meeting the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 481 proposing to 
reduce the number of directors from seven to five.  The resolution contained the map shown as 
Attachment 1 and description of the boundaries for the five divisions proposed to be established. The 
Board Secretary set a date for a public hearing on the proposal to reduce the number of directors, for 
October 31, 2012, which is not less than 30 days and not more than 60 days after the date of adoption of 
Resolution No. 481. The Board Secretary gave notice of the hearing including a description of the 
proposal and a map and general description of the proposed boundaries of the five divisions was 
published on the web and made available at District office. The District also published notice of the 
hearing according to Section 6063 of the Government Code in the San Bernardino Sun Newspaper on 
October 2nd, 9th, 16th and Highland Community News on October 5th, 12th, and 19th ,both more than 10 
days before the hearing.  
 
Additionally to make this change the Board shall hold a hearing to receive and consider any written or 
oral comments regarding the proposed reduction in the number of directors. After receiving and 
considering those comments, the board, by a recorded vote of two-thirds of the total membership of the 
board, shall do either of the following: 

(1) Disapprove the proposal. 
(2) Adopt Resolution No. 484 that orders the reduction in the number of members of the 

board. 
 
A reduction in the number of directors and a change in division boundaries pursuant to this section shall 
not affect the term of office of any director.  A director of a division for which boundaries have been 
changed shall continue to be the director of the division bearing the number of his or her division until 
the office becomes vacant by means of term expiration or otherwise, whether or not the director is a 
resident within the boundaries of the division as changed. The successor to the office of a division for 
which boundaries have been changed shall be a resident and voter of that division. 
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 RESOLUTION NO. 484 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN BERNARDINO 
VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPLEMENTING SENATE  
BILL 235 AND ORDERING THE REORGANIZATION OF THE DIVISIONS  

OF THE SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
REDUCING THE NUMBER FROM SEVEN TO FIVE  

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District (“District”) is duly formed and existing 
under the Water Conservation District Law, California Water Code Sections 74000 et seq; and 
 

WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 74200 provides that a Board of Directors can consist of three, 
five, or seven members, depending on the number of divisions within a district; and 
 

WHEREAS, historically, the District has been organized into seven divisions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has been committed to providing responsive, representative government for all of its 
constituents, in the manner which is most cost effective; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors concluded that cost efficiencies may be able to be achieved, both 

in terms of Board of Directors’ expenses and election expenses, from a reduction in the number of divisions of the 
District from seven to five; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District proposed and lobbied for Senate Bill No. 235, an act to add Section 74209 to the 
Water Code, which has been chaptered as Chapter 122 and was approved by the Governor on July 25, 2011; and  

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 235 added Water Code Section 74209, which provided authority for the District to 

reduce the number of divisions from seven to five, and provided procedures incident thereto; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has given thorough consideration to the question of whether a 
reduction to five divisions, from the existing seven divisions, was advisable, and if so, in what manner the divisions 
might best be reorganized consistent with the maintenance of logical boundaries, communities of interest, and 
applicable provisions of law; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors reviewed guidelines and conceptual iterations of potential redistricting of 
divisions at its meetings of September 14, 2011 and January 12, 2012; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2012, the Board took action to direct staff to prepare alternatives for a five division 
redistricting, and to prepare a resolution for implementation of such redistricting; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board reviewed additional potential redistricting scenarios at its meetings of July 25, 2012, 
and a special workshop devoted to redistricting issues held August 29, 2012; and  

 
 WHEREAS, as a result of these efforts, the Board has determined that it is in the best interests of the District 
and its constituents, to redraw the seven historical divisions of the District into five divisions, thereby resulting in cost 
efficiencies without any sacrifice of responsiveness in representation of its constituents, and 
 WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the requirements of Elections Code Section 22000, and section 1973 of 
Title 42 of the United States Code, as amended, in connection with the drawing of the five new division boundaries, 
including reviewing factors of topography, geography, cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity and compactness of territory, 
and communities of interests of the District, and determined that the division boundaries as proposed to be reorganized 
and established hereto will promote the efficient provision of the District’s services, include a proportionate balance of 
population and represented groups throughout the divisions, and will improve the efficiency of the District’s operations 
within its jurisdictional boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 12, 2012, the Board Approved Resolution No. 481 resolving to reduce the number 
of divisions within the District, and the resulting number of directors on the District’s Board of Directors, from seven 
(7) to five (5), and approving the map and description of the boundaries for the five divisions proposed to be 
established, which attached hereto as Exhibit “1.”  Resolution  No. 481 directed the District’s General Manager to set a 
public hearing on the proposal to reduce the number of divisions as set forth in Exhibit “1;” and .   
 
 WHEREAS, The District General Manager gave notice of the hearing, including a description of the proposal 
and a map and general description of the proposed boundaries, pursuant to Government Code Section 6063.  The Board 
secretary set a date for a public hearing on the proposal to reduce the number of divisions, for October 31, 2012, which 
was not less than 30 days and not more than 60 days after the date of adoption of Resolution No. 481. The District also 
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published notice of the hearing according to Section 6063 of the Government Code in the San Bernardino Sun 
Newspaper on October 2nd, 9th, and 16th and Highland Community News on October 5th , 12th  and 19th , both more than 
10 days before the hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, that public hearing thus duly noticed, was held on October 31, 2012, and all comments were 
received and considered; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE San Bernardino VALLEY WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The District’s Board hereby confirms the reduction of the number of divisions, and the 
consequent reduction in the number of Directors, directors from seven (7) to five (5).  
 

Section 2. The District’s Board hereby approves and confirms the map and description of the reconfigured 
boundaries for the five divisions established under this Resolution, which are attached hereto as Exhibit “1.” 
 

Section 3. The District’s General Manager and General Counsel are hereby directed to take all further 
measures required to effectuate the implementation of the reduction of divisions from seven (7) to five (5), including 
coordinating with the Registrar of Voters on the new mapping of divisions, coordinating the alignment and remaining 
terms of Directors, and all other matters necessary or convenient to effectuating the reduction of divisions and Directors 
accomplished hereby. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors this 31st day of 

October, 2012, by the following roll-call vote: 
 

 
YES:   DIRECTORS:  
NO:   DIRECTORS:  
ABSTAIN:  DIRECTORS:  
ABSENT:  DIRECTORS:  

 
 
 
 
   
    Richard Corneille, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
 Daniel Cozad, Secretary 
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SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

MINUTES OF October 10, 2012 
12:30 P.M. 

 
President Corneille called the Board Meeting of the Board of Directors to order 
at 12:30 p.m.  All present stood for the pledge of allegiance, led by President 
Corneille.  
 
ROLL CALL:   
 
 BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
   
 

Richard Corneille, President 
Melody McDonald, Vice President  
Bob Glaubig, Director 
David E. Raley, Director  
Manuel Aranda, Director  
Clare Henry Day, Director 

 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

      John Longville, Director  
 
  
 GENERAL COUNSEL PRESENT: 

 
  David Cosgrove, Rutan & Tucker, LLP  
  
     
 STAFF PRESENT: 
 
  Daniel Cozad, General Manager 
  Athena Medina, Administrative Services Specialist 
  
 
 GUESTS PRESENT: 
 
  Charles Roberts, Highland Community News 

Don Lee, Tetra Tech 
Bob Tincher, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District  
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1. CLOSED SESSION  
 

It was moved by Director McDonald and seconded by 
Director Aranda and at 12:35 p.m. the Board adjourned 
into Closed Session. 

 
Legal counsel announced the Board would adjourn to closed session on all 
items listed on published agenda.  Under the authority of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (b) (3) (e) the Board entered closed session to 
discuss exposure to litigation.  
 
At 1:30 p.m. the Board reconvened into open session and General Counsel 
reported no reportable action was taken in closed session. 
 
 

2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
President Corneille announced this as the time for any persons present, who 
so desire, to make an oral presentation to the Board of Directors. Hearing 
none, the meeting continued with published agenda items. 
 
 
3. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA  

 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.   

 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Approval of the Board Minutes from September 12, 2012 
 
It was moved by Director Aranda and seconded by 
Director Day to approve the minutes from September 
12, 2012 with revisions suggested by President 
Corneille. The motion carried 6-0 with Director Longville 
noted absent.  
 

Approval of Unaudited Financials and Check Register for, September 2012.  
 
President Corneille requested the Board of Director’s account 6410 for 
mileage be verified for actual expenses, since 71% of the budget has been 
reported spent in the first 3 months of the year. 
 

It was moved by Director Day and seconded by Director 
Aranda to approve the Unaudited Financials and Check 
Register for September 2012. The motion carried 6-0 
with Director Longville noted absent.  

 

Package Page 10 of 96



    
 

SBVWCD Minutes of October 10, 2012 Page 3 of 8 

5. ACTION ITEMS, NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. ENHANCED RECHARGE PROJECT PRESENTATION-SBVMWD 
 
Bob Tincher with San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District presented a 
PowerPoint presentation on the Enhanced Recharge Project.  He announced 
the receipt of the 60% design drawings and specifications documents for this 
project.  Prior to review of where the project is today he presented a brief 
history of the project and the tasks that led up to its implementation.  
 
In June of 2010 SBVMWD and WMWD received a permit to divert Santa Ana 
River water from the State Water Resources Control Board and have been 
diverting water since. Mr. Tincher noted that this project has been in 
development since 1991 when SBVMWD originally filed to obtain their water 
rights.  He stated that prior to the creation of Seven Oaks Dam (SOD) in 1998 
there was no need to create these facilities; after the dam was installed it 
forever altered the stream flow that comes from the canyon.  There is a 
controlled outlet below the dam which backs the water up behind the dam. The 
peak design inflow on the Santa Ana River is 82000 cfs which occurred 
historically within a span of four days.  We would like to reduce and control the 
dam outflow to capture more water.    Before the dam the watershed received 
peaks of 82,000 cfs with most of this amount lost to the ocean, and now that 
the dam is in place the maximum outflow is 7,000 cfs. 
 
The design criteria for the Enhanced Recharge facilities is 500 cfs using both 
the District’s existing facilities and constructing new facilities on District 
property.  The groundwater models indicate that 80,000 acre feet per year 
could be put into the expanded Santa Ana River facilities and recharged into 
the basin at 500 cfs.  In 2009, an Optimization Study was performed to verify 
how District facilities could be used.  The current ponds can handle 195 cfs, 
therefore SBVMWD will need to add additional facilities divert up to 500 cfs.  
Mr. Tincher continued and reviewed studies that were performed during the 
development of the Enhanced Recharge Project.  The new facilities may be 
able to capture up to 80% of the water, with the second phase of the Plunge 
Pool Pipeline it may be able to achieve 98% capture.  Mr. Tincher reviewed 
the schematic in detail and potential schedule for construction. Present 
Corneille commented that the District is reviewing and commenting on the 
design of the facilities. He thanked Mr. Tincher for his comprehensive 
presentation on the project.  
 
There was no action required.  
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B. COLLABORATIVE AGREEMENT WITH SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT (SBVMWD) AND WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT (WMWD) 

President Corneille introduced this item. He noted that Director McDonald, GM 
Cozad and he attended a meeting yesterday at SBVMWD to discuss several 
new concerns with the Agreement that SBVMWD Board members have raised 
after they approved the agreement. The issues included the yearly LACPI 
increase and the term of the agreement. The SBVMWD Board has requested 
that the Agreement term be revised for 25 years with five, five year extensions.  
It was suggested that the Agreement should be approved today by the District 
as is, but give Staff direction to participate in negotiations to reduce the term of 
the agreement from 50 years to a fixed 25 years with five, five year extensions 
and bring back the final agreement after SBVMWD and WMWD approve any 
amendments to the District Board for final review and approval.   
 

It was moved by Director Day and seconded by Director 
McDonald to approve the Collaborative Agreement and 
to direct Staff to participate in negotiations with the 
other parties to the agreement changing the term to 25 
years with five, five year extensions and bring back an 
amended agreement for review and approval by the 
Board.    The motion carried 6-0 with Director Longville 
noted absent from the vote. 

 
 
C. SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

Daniel Cozad, General Manager introduced this item for discussion.  He noted 
that this agreement is to allow the SBCFCD an easement to use the property 
for cleanout of flood control facilities.  The SBCFCD currently has an historic 
easement for flood control on the property, but not specifically for short term 
storage and sorting of material from flood control facilities.  The City of 
Highland has asked the SBCFCD to move their operations from their current 
sites due to potential development of that land.  CEMEX is the lessor of the 
land SBCFCD desires to use.  SBCFCD will coordinate with CEMEX to ensure 
they work without causing undue harm to CEMEX’s operations.  President 
Corneille inquired as to if there was a term for which SBCFCD would be able 
to store materials.  Mr. Cozad noted that there is no limit, but the District 
reserves the right to ask SBCFCD to move if necessary.  The SBCFCD 
typically uses contracts with 18 month periods of performance.  The materials 
stored on District property are excavated materials from nearby flood control 
basins.  Mr. Cozad stated it’s an encumbrance on future use of the land but he 
does not feel that there are any other negatives elements to this agreement.  
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It was moved by Director McDonald and seconded by 
Director Raley to approve the San Bernardino County 
Flood Control District Easement Agreement. The 
motion carried 6-0 with Director Longville noted absent 
from the vote. 
 

D. ESTABLISHING BUSINESS CREDIT CARD ACCOUNTS WITH 
CITIZENS BUSINESS BANK  

President Corneille introduced this item for discussion.  He asked Mr. Cozad to 
identify what the current process is for purchasing, specifically for field 
operations.  Mr. Cozad noted that Field Staff does have credit accounts at their 
disposal for materials at local merchants, but all major purchases are made 
through the General Manager and Administrative Staff.  All purchases are 
verified by comparing receipts to credit card statements.  Mr. Cozad noted that 
currently Daniel Cozad and Melody McDonald have credit cards. Under the 
new account only General Manager Cozad and Administrative Services 
Specialist, Athena Medina would have credit cards.  Included in the resolution 
is that once we obtain a Citizen’s Business Bank credit card account, the 
American Express and Bank of America card accounts will be terminated.   

 
It was moved by Director McDonald and seconded by 
Director Aranda to approve Resolution No. 482 
authorizing Staff to establish a new business credit 
card account with Citizen’s Business Bank and close 
the existing bank credit card accounts.  The motion 
carried 6-0 with Director Longville noted absent.   

 
 

E. PLUNGE CREEK CONSERVATION PROJECT APPROVAL  

Mr. Cozad reviewed this item with the Board. This project was discussed at the 
Board Meeting on September 12th. There was a letter submitted to County 
Flood Control regarding a potential project they may have on the edge of 
Plunge and Elder Creek and out of those discussions the Plunge Creek 
Conservation Project was developed.  The District and Flood Control have 
interest in improving habitat for Woolly Star, Kangaroo Rat and other 
endangered species.  Mr. Cozad noted that on package pages 88 & 89 there 
include maps of the potential project area.  This joint project was submitted on 
October 1, 2012 to SAWPA for OWOW funding.   

 
The Wash Plan has an implementation element to improve habitat in the EIR 
which includes elements of this project.   He stated that this project was 
developed from the District’s Priorities list to partner with other agencies.  
SBVMWD assisted in developing this project by allowing the District to use 
preliminary engineering data from their tributary study for additional recharge 
areas.  Staff identified areas next to the active channel which contain 
nonnative grasses that are unsuitable for Kangaroo Rat habitat and reduce 
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percolation.  Mr. Cozad suggested that removing the nonnative grass and 
creating water diversions points would create higher quality habitat for the 
Kangaroo Rats.  There would be an improvement from low quality habitat to 
high quality habitat while creating water and species conservation.  Mr. Cozad 
will meet with USFWS to discuss the project in detail.  The District will have to 
commit local funding for the project to receive grant funding and is currently 
looking for partners to help support the project.  President Corneille noted that 
this is a request and the success of the grant application is not guaranteed.  
Mr. Cozad noted that there is only a total of $16 million dollars available of 
SAWPA OWOW grant funding in round 2.    The funding commitment letter will 
come out next fiscal year if the project is selected for funding.   
 

It was moved by Director Raley to approve the Plunge 
Creek Conservation Project and seconded by Director 
Aranda.  The motion carried 6-0 with Director Longville 
noted absent.  
 
 

F. DISTRICT PRIORITIES UPDATE  

Mr. Cozad reviewed the updated District Priorities table.  President Corneille 
said that he thinks December is optimistic in regards to the Strategic Plan 
review and revisions.  He would prefer to defer to early next year to allow for 
partner agencies to review as well.  There are additional items that we need to 
accomplish this year that take precedence.  Mr. Cozad noted he does have an 
outline for the Strategic Plan, but agrees with President Corneille.   

 
6. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 
A. General Manager’s Report 

Mr. Cozad indicated the written report in the package on page 101 covered 
significant activities.  He noted that the District closed out the year at 9000 AF 
recharged.  He commended the Field Staff on capturing and putting the water 
into the ground in a dry year.  Mr. Cozad recommended selecting an Ad Hoc 
Audit Committee meeting date; the Committee selected the 17th at 1:30 p.m.  
District Intern Staff have finished the edits to the Operations and Maintenance 
Manual; it has been uploaded to the website.   
 
The EBX extension walk is scheduled for some time next week.  President 
Corneille asked that Randy Carlisle be present for that walk if available.     
 
B. Monthly Recharge Report 

This item was discussed previously.  
 
C. Wash Plan Status Update 
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The District has submitted through RBF the proposed habitat conservation 
strategy map to the US Fish and Wildlife Service and is waiting to hear back 
next week.  It includes more habitat than the prior plan but  minimizes the 
impact on mining areas.  There will be an update sent out to the Task Force in 
the near future.   
 
 
D. Future Agenda Items & Staff Task requests from Directors  

President Corneille noted that there will be an upcoming ACWA\JPIA Sexual 
Harassment Training session here at the District on November 1st at 9 a.m.   
 
Staff is planning the December 12th Holiday Luncheon offsite.  
 
 
7. MONTHLY BOARD MEMBER COMMITTEE ACTIVITY REPORTS, AND 

/OR COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS  
 
Director Activity Reports 

 
Director Day made no report.  
 
Director Glaubig attended the Highland Trails Committee Meeting where he 
discussed the use of District property.  The Highland Trails Committee had 
already chosen a route for 2013, but are keeping us in mind for 2014.  He also 
attended the Harmony Project Public Meeting.  The new Greenspot Bridge will 
be four lanes, but only two will be initially usable.  The new realignment of 
Greenspot Road will run into the Harmony community.  There are no plans for 
a Mill Creek bridge.  .  They are predicting 3300 acre ft. per year of water 
usage. The  Harmony Project is approximately 3300 units which will potentially 
create congestion in regards to traffic.   
 
Director McDonald attended SBVMWD’s workshop and Board meeting.  She 
also attended the SBACC Legislative Breakfast with Senator Bob Dutton.  
 
Director Aranda attended the CSDA Annual Conference in San Diego where 
he took his Ethics Training.  Also, he will present a presentation at SBACC 
titled Water 101.     
 
Director Raley attended the city managers briefing on repairing the streets in 
Redlands in which the trash rates will go up to cover these costs.  
 
President Corneille noted that he was gone on vacation during most of the 
period between meetings and has no report.   
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8. UPCOMING MEETINGS 

President Corneille noted to add the November 1st Sexual Harassment 
meeting to the listing of meetings.  

 
 
 

9. ADJOURN MEETING 
 

It was moved by Director Day and seconded by Director 
McDonald to adjourn to the next scheduled meeting.  
The motion carried 6-0 with Director Longville noted 
absent.  

 
At 3:40 p.m. the meeting adjourned to the Public Hearing on Redistricting 
scheduled for October 31, 2012 at 1:30 p.m., at District Headquarters, 1630 
W. Redlands Blvd., Redlands, CA.    

     
 ______________________________ 

      Daniel B. Cozad 
      General Manager 
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RESOLUTION NO. 483 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

IN RECOGNITION OF 27 YEARS OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO THE WATER 
INDUSTRY BY RETIRING EAST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT GENERAL 

MANAGER 
 

ROBERT E. MARTIN 
 
 

WHEREAS,  Robert E. Martin has honorably served the East Valley Water District in several 
positions as Associate Civil Engineer, Assistant District Engineer, District Engineer, Assistant General 
Manager, and General Manager for 27 years from March 19, 1984 to November 30, 2011; and, 
 

WHEREAS, his local knowledge, experience, leadership and commitment contributed greatly 
to improving the water quality of the San Bernardino Groundwater Basin, and the infrastructure of the 
East Valley Water District; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  he actively served in both State and Federal lobbying efforts and with ACWA on 

critical water issues, on the Board of Governors and Legislative Review Committee of CMUA, with the 
American Water Works Association Research Foundation to develop treatment technologies and 
Federal funding to meet new water quality regulations, and as the Legislative Budget Committee 
Chairman for WESTCAS; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  he has tirelessly worked on water supply facility improvements and made a 

commitment to supplying water of high quality in the face of increased water quality regulations; and, 
 
WHEREAS, under his leadership East Valley Water District has worked closely with the San 

Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District on increasing groundwater recharge and improving 
water quality for the entire basin; and, 
 

WHEREAS, his valued support of our groundwater spreading operations and the District’s 
mission has been greatly appreciated, and he will truly be missed; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the Board of Directors of the 

San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District, express to Robert E. Martin, their gratitude and 
sincere appreciation for the service and support he has rendered. 
 
 
 
DATED:  October 31, 2012  
 
 
 
____________________  ____________________  ___________________ 
Richard Corneille   Melody McDonald   Manuel Aranda 
President    Vice President               Director 
 
 
 
____________________  ____________________  ___________________ 
Clare Henry Day   Bob Glaubig    John Longville 
Director    Director    Director 
 
  
____________________  ____________________ 
David Raley    Daniel B. Cozad 
Director    Secretary   
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Melody McDonald 
Manuel Aranda, Jr. 

GENERAL
MANAGER 

Daniel B. Cozad

 

 
                     Memorandum No. 1131 
 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
From:   General Manager, Daniel Cozad  
 
Date:  October 31, 2012 
 
Subject: 2012 Audit Report Presentation  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Ad Hoc Audit Committee (Committee) recommends the Board review and accept the 2012 Audit Report 
presented by Charles Fedak & Company. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Charles Fedak and Company was selected by the Board and performed the 2011 fiscal year audit.  The 
auditor contract is a one year agreement with two, one year extensions subject to evaluation of performance.  
Staff working with the Committee recommended performing the 2012 audit under the same contract.  The 
Committee met on August 17, 2012 to discuss the audit and planned schedule.  Staff and support contract 
worked together produce materials.  The auditor reviewed and prepared a preliminary draft report and 
presented it to the Committee on October 17, 2012.  The Auditor made the requested clarifications and 
updates and prepared the report and management letter attached to this memo for presentation and approval.  
As indicated by the management letter the audit is a “clean” audit and staff addressed all recommendations 
from the 2011 management letter. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Chris Brown, CPA will present the Audit and Management Reports and respond to any questions the Board 
may have. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The audit was conducted in accordance with the approved 2012-2013 budget.  
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September 28, 2012 

 
Board of Directors  
San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 

 
Introduction 

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the San Bernardino Valley Water 
Conservation District (District) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 following guidelines set 
forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. District staff prepared this financial report.  The 
District is ultimately responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairness 
of presentation, including all disclosures in this financial report. We believe that the data presented is 
accurate in all material respects.  This report is designed in a manner that we believe necessary to enhance 
your understanding of the District’s financial position and activities. 

This report is organized into two sections: (1) Introductory and (2) Financial.  The Introductory section 
offers general information about the District’s organization and current District activities and reports on a 
summary of significant financial results. The Financial section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report, 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the District’s basic financial statements, and the District’s 
audited basic financial statements with accompanying Notes.   

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the financial statements in the form of the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be found 
immediately after the Independent Auditor’s Report.  

District Structure and Leadership 

The San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District is an independent special district, which operates 
under the authority of Division 21 of the California Water Code. The origin of the District dates from 
1909 when the Water Conservation Association was formed to conserve water in the region. The District 
was formed in 1932 as the successor agency to the Water Conservation Association by a vote of the 
people. The District is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors, elected by division from within 
the District’s service area. The General Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in 
accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors. The District employs 
approximately six regular employees, three in the field and three in the office. The District’s Board of 
Directors meets each month. Meetings are publicly noticed and the public and the press are encouraged to 
attend its meetings and workshops. 
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District Services 

The San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District recharges the groundwater basin protecting the 
safe yield of the San Bernardino Bunker Hill Basin and benefits all of the cities, districts and agricultural 
and non-agricultural groundwater producers within the District’s boundaries. 

To accomplish the recharge, the District maintains 71 water percolation basins in the Mill Creek and 
Santa Ana River spreading grounds.  The District also plans for, maintains, or leases over 2000 acres in 
the Santa Ana River Wash at and below the confluence of the Santa Ana River and Mill Creek.  Water 
year 2012 was a dry year; the District recharged all available water for recharge into the groundwater 
basin which amounted to approximately 11,000 acre feet.  

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The District is located at a strategic point in the watershed in the East end of the San Bernardino Valley.  
The Valley has experienced significant economic growth within the Inland Empire over the past few 
years however, the downturn in building and the larger economy in general greatly impacted the District’s 
revenues.  With the overall downturn in building, the District has experienced a reduction in mining 
royalties collected on aggregate mined from District leased properties.  In late 2011, the District 
negotiated a new land lease and mining agreement with CEMEX which provides for minimum annual 
guaranteed revenue.  The effect of this change is beginning to be realized and will help to mitigate future 
revenue variability.   As the District’s water production and Groundwater Charge revenue may be affected 
by these overall economic conditions, the District’s commitment to cost reductions and rate changes have 
served to reduce the structural deficit.   

The broader economic outlook for the Inland Empire is slowly improving from the worst of the prolonged 
real estate recession.  Historically, the Inland Empire will recover somewhat slower than Los Angeles and 
the Coastal areas of Southern California.  The ongoing financial crisis that has impacted the District is 
forecast to continue for the next few years.  The California State budget deficit may also impact the 
District due to reductions in grants and reduced property tax revenues. 

Internal Control Structure 

District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal control structure 
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse. The internal control 
structure also ensures adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The District’s internal control 
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met with the limited staff at 
the District. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not 
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management.  The District accomplishes this with very minimal staffing. 

Budgetary Control 

The District’s Board of Directors annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the beginning 
of the new fiscal year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial 
operations and accountability for the District’s enterprise operations and capital projects. The budget and 
reporting treatment applied to the District is consistent with the accrual basis of accounting and the 
financial statement basis. 

In 2011, the District’s board of Directors adopted an enterprise model for financial management as well 
as reserve and other pertinent policies to implement the enterprise model.  These changes are intended to 
provide better internal accountability and provide greater public transparency.  Most changes were 
implemented throughout fiscal year 2011; however, some changes were not made until the budget was 
approved for fiscal year 2012.  As a result, not all reports reflect the full enterprise format.  This 
changeover also limits detailed comparability with prior years.  Summary agency-wide reports are still 
provided and coordinated with prior years.    
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Investment Policy 

The Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that conforms to state law, District ordinance 
and resolutions, prudent money management, and the “prudent person” standards. The objective of the 
Investment Policy is safety, liquidity and yield. District funds are invested in the State Treasurer’s Local 
Agency Investment Fund, the Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST), and an institutional checking 
accounts. 

District Revenues 

State law and District policy ensure that all revenues from groundwater charges generated from District 
production support District operations. Groundwater Change rates are set in accordance with section 
75500 of the California Water Code.  Groundwater charges are levied on all groundwater producing 
agricultural and non-agricultural facilities within the District boundaries.  This is the primary component 
of the District’s revenue. The District has agreements with other entities to seek reimbursement for 
recharge of water on their behalf. Revenue is also comprised of royalties from aggregate mining, property 
leases, and interest on reserves.  

Audit and Financial Reporting 

State Laws require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial statements by an independent 
certified public accountant.  The accounting firm of Charles Z. Fedak & Company, CPAs has conducted 
the audit of the District’s financial statements.  Their unqualified Independent Auditor’s Report appears in 
the Financial Section. 

Other References 

More information is contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Notes to the Basic 
Financial Statements found in the Financial Section of the report. 

Acknowledgements 

Preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff.  We appreciate the 
dedicated efforts and professionalism that these staff members contribute to the District.  We would also 
like to thank the members of the Ad Hoc Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for their continued 
support in planning and implementation of the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District’s 
fiscal policies. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

__________________________      
Daniel B. Cozad       
General Manager      
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors 
San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Redlands, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the San Bernardino Valley Water 
Conservation District (District) as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, which 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These 
basic financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatements.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the basic financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District as of June 30, 
2012 and 2011, and the respective changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 28, 
2012 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in 
considering the results of our audit. This report can be found on page 33. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report, continued 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information, on page 30, in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section on 
pages 1 through 3 and the supplemental information on pages 31 through 32 are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The supplementary 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section 
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements 
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the section. 

 
 
 
 
Charles Z. Fedak & Company, CPA’s – An Accountancy Corporation 
Cypress, California 
September 28, 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Package Page 29 of 96



San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 
 

6  

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District (District) provides an introduction to the 
financial statements of the District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.  We encourage 
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the 
Introductory Section and with the basic financial statements and related notes, which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights  

 The District’s net assets increased 2.7% or $76,259 to $2,958,889 in fiscal year 2012 as the result 
of operations.  In 2011, the District’s net assets decreased 4.8 % or $145,659 to $2,882,630 as the 
result of operations.   

 The District’s operating revenues increased 36.0% or $227,024 in 2012 primarily due to a 
$69,726 increase in groundwater assessments and a $157,298 increase in water spreading 
revenues.  In 2011, the District’s operating revenues increased 36.3% or $168,113 primarily due 
to an increase in groundwater assessments.  

 The District’s non-operating revenues increase by 12.0% or $54,720 in 2012 due primarily to a 
$153,958 increase in royalty revenues and a $38,858 increase in rental income that was offset by 
a $160,343 decrease in other non-operating revenues.  In 2011, non-operating revenues increased 
by 37.0% or $122,955 due primarily to a $180,441 increase in miscellaneous revenues that was 
offset by a decrease in royalty income of $29,260 and a decrease in rental income of $10,060.  

 The District’s operating expenses increased 1.3% or $13,469 in 2012 primarily due to increases in 
staff salaries of $41,894, equipment costs of $56,255, and election related Director’s fees and 
expenses of $31,490, which was offset by a decrease in professional services expense in the 
amount of $113,636.  In 2011, operating expenses decreased 48.8% or $1,011,955 in 2011 
primarily due to decreases in professional services expenses of $315,365, benefits expenses of 
$138,690, staff salaries expenses of $276,675, regional program expenses of $170,131, and 
general and administrative expenses of $89,183.   

 The District’s non-operating expenses increased 84.3% or $52,119 in 2012 primarily due to a 
$34,198 increase in rental property expense and a $20,222 decrease in the fair-market value of 
investments at fiscal year-end.  In 2011, non-operating expenses decreased 27.7% or $23,718 
primarily due to a $19,980 decrease in rental property expense. 

Required Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and Statement of Cash Flows provide information about 
the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by private 
sector companies.   

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and the 
obligations to creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating 
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  All 
of the current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Assets.  This statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past 
year and can be used to determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its 
rates and other charges. This statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. 
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about 
the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. 

  

 

Package Page 30 of 96



San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 
 

7  

Required Financial Statements, Continued 

The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from 
operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides 
answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the 
change in cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets report information about the District in a way that helps 
answer this question.  

These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar 
to the accounting method used by most private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and 
expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the District’s 
net assets – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure the District’s financial 
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are one 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider 
other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning and new 
or changed government legislation, such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 16 
through 29. 

Statements of Net Assets 

 

 

 

2012 2011 Change
Assets:

Current assets $ 6,688,131     6,737,318     (49,187)        
Capital assets, net 1,373,408     1,460,704     (87,296)        

Total assets $ 8,061,539     8,198,022     (136,483)       

Liabilities:
Current liabilities $ 51,840          112,620        (60,780)        
Non-current liabilities 5,050,810     5,202,772     (151,962)       

Total liabilities 5,102,650     5,315,392     (212,742)       

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 1,373,408     1,460,704     (87,296)        
Unrestricted 1,585,481     1,421,926     163,555        

Total net assets 2,958,889     2,882,630     76,259          

Total liabilities and net assets $ 8,061,539     8,198,022     (136,483)       

Condensed Statements of Net Assets
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Statement of Net Assets, Continued 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
In the case of the District, assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $2,958,889 and $2,882,630 as of 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets, 46.4% as of June 30, 2012 and 50.7% as of June 30, 
2011, reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation). The District 
uses these capital assets to provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending.  

At the end of fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net 
assets of $1,585,481 and $1,421,926, respectively, which may be utilized in future years.   

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes of net assets shows how the District’s net assets 
changed during the fiscal years. In the case of the District, net assets increased by $76,259 and decreased 
by $145,659 in fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

A closer examination of the sources of changes in net assets reveals that:  

 The District’s net assets increased 2.7% or $76,259 to $2,958,889 in fiscal year 2012 as the result 
of operations.  In 2011, the District’s net assets decreased 4.8 % or $145,659 to $2,882,630 as the 
result of operations.   

 The District’s operating revenues increased 36.0% or $227,024 in 2012 primarily due to a 
$69,726 increase in groundwater assessments and a $157,298 increase in water spreading 
revenues.  In 2011, the District’s operating revenues increased 36.3% or $168,113 primarily due 
to an increase in groundwater assessments.  

 

 

2012 2011 Change
Revenues:

Operating revenues $ 858,490        631,466        227,024        
Non-operating revenues 509,710        454,990        54,720          

Total revenues 1,368,200     1,086,456     281,744        

Expenses:
Operating expenses 1,084,560     1,071,091     13,469          
Depreciation expense 105,948        99,224          6,724           
Non-operating expenses 113,919        61,800          52,119          

Total expenses 1,304,427     1,232,115     72,312          

Net income (loss) before capital contributions 63,773          (145,659)       209,432        

Capital contributions: 12,486          -                  12,486          

Change in net assets 76,259          (145,659)       221,918        

Net assets, beginning of year 2,882,630     3,028,289     (145,659)       

Net assets, end of year $ 2,958,889     2,882,630     76,259          

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Package Page 32 of 96



San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 
 

9  

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, Continued 

 The District’s non-operating revenues increase by 12.0% or $54,720 in 2012 due primarily to a 
$153,958 increase in royalty revenues and a $38,858 increase in rental income that was offset by 
a $160,343 decrease in other non-operating revenues.  In 2011, non-operating revenues increase 
by 37.0% or $122,955 due primarily to a $180,441 increase in miscellaneous revenues that was 
offset by a decrease in royalty income of $29,260 and a decrease in rental income of $10,060.  

 The District’s operating expenses increased 1.3% or $13,469 in 2012 primarily due to increases in 
staff salaries of $41,894, equipment costs of $56,255, and election related Director’s fees and 
expenses of $31,490, which was offset by a decrease in professional services expense in the 
amount of $113,636.  In 2011, operating expenses decreased 48.8% or $1,011,955 in 2011 
primarily due to decreases in professional services expenses of $315,365, benefits expenses of 
$138,690, staff salaries expenses of $276,675, regional program expenses of $170,131, and 
general and administrative expenses of $89,183.   

 The District’s non-operating expenses increased 84.3% or $52,119 in 2012 primarily due to a 
$34,198 increase in rental property expense and a $20,222 decrease in the fair-market value of 
investments at fiscal year-end.  In 2011, non-operating expenses decreased 27.7% or $23,718 
primarily due to a $19,980 decrease in rental property expense. 

Capital Asset Administration 

At the end of fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to 
$1,373,408 and $1,460,704, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital 
assets includes land, diversion facilities, recharge basins, buildings, equipment, and vehicles, etc. Major 
capital assets additions during the year include improvements the District’s buildings and equipment. 

 
 

 

 

Changes in capital assets in 2012 were as follows:

Balance Disposals/ Balance
2011 Additions Transfers 2012

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 219,383        -              -              219,383        
Depreciable assets 2,118,148     18,652          -              2,136,800     
Accumulated depreciation (876,827)       (105,948)       -              (982,775)       

Total capital assets $ 1,460,704     (87,296)        -              1,373,408     

Changes in capital assets in 2011 were as follows:

Balance Disposals/ Balance
2010 Additions Transfers 2011

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 219,383        -              -              219,383        
Depreciable assets 2,039,273     78,875          -              2,118,148     
Accumulated depreciation (777,607)       (99,220)        -              (876,827)       

Total capital assets $ 1,481,049     (20,345)        -              1,460,704     
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Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s current 
financial position, net assets or operating results based on past, present and future events. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and 
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.  
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request 
additional financial information, please review the District website at www.sbvwcd.org or contact the 
District’s General Manager at 1630 West Redlands Blvd, Suite A, PO Box 1839, Redlands, CA 92373  
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2012 2011

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 6,194,467     6,360,057     
Accounts Receivable 30,000          -                  
Assessments receivable 295,155        259,051        
Interest receivable 5,103           7,446           
Advances to Wash Plan (note 3) 161,906        110,764        
Prepaid expense 1,500           -                  

Total current assets 6,688,131     6,737,318     

Non-current assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated (note 4) 219,383        219,383        
Depreciable capital assets (note 4) 1,154,025     1,241,321     

Total non-current assets 1,373,408     1,460,704     

Total assets $ 8,061,539     8,198,022     

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 23,032          35,397          
Accrued wages and related payables 9,593           18,735          
Customer deposits 4,717           5,825           
Long-term liabilities – due in less than one year:

Compensated absences (note 5) 14,498          39,934          
Pension-related debt (note 7) -                  12,729          

Total current liabilities 51,840          112,620        

Non-current liabilities:
Deferred revenue (note 6) 5,000,000     5,000,000     
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (note 5) 48,848          29,864          
Other post-employment benefits payable (note 9) 1,962           962              
Pension-related debt (note 7) -                  171,946        

Total non-current liabilities 5,050,810     5,202,772     

Total liabilities 5,102,650     5,315,392     

Net assets: (note 10)
Investment in capital assets 1,373,408     1,460,704     
Unrestricted 1,585,481     1,421,926     

Total net assets 2,958,889     2,882,630     

Total net assets and liabilities $ 8,061,539     8,198,022     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Assets

Liabilities
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2012 2011

Operating revenues:
Groundwater assessments $ 671,192        601,466        
Water spreading operations 157,298        -                  
Services for other agencies 30,000          30,000          

Total operating revenues 858,490        631,466        

Operating expenses:
Water spreading operations 889,821        900,990        
Regional programs 1,028           2,194           
General and administrative 193,711        167,907        

Total operating expenses 1,084,560     1,071,091     

Operating loss before depreciation expense (226,070)       (439,625)       
Depreciation expense (105,948)       (99,224)        

Operating loss (332,018)       (538,849)       

Non-operating revenue(expense):
Property taxes 76,976          79,880          
Royalty income 201,064        47,106          
Rental income 159,824        120,966        
Interest earnings 55,030          29,879          
Decrease in fair-market value of investments (20,222)        -                  
Rental property expense (81,957)        (47,759)        
Interest expense (11,740)        (14,041)        
Other non-operating revenue(expense), net 16,816          177,159        

Total non-operating revenues, net 395,791        393,190        

Capital contributions:
Grant revenue 12,486          -                  

Total capital contributions 12,486          -                  

Change in net assets 76,259          (145,659)       

Net assets, beginning of year 2,882,630     3,028,289     

Net assets, end of year $ 2,958,889     2,882,630     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from groundwater assessments and other agencies $ 792,386        594,415        
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (595,525)       (372,770)       
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (522,008)       (529,005)       

Net cash used in operating activities (325,147)       (307,360)       

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (18,652)        (78,875)        

Net cash used in capital financing activities (18,652)        (78,875)        

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Property taxes 76,976          79,880          
Royalty income 201,064        47,106          
Rental revenue, net 77,867          73,207          
Grants 12,486          -                  
Advances to Wash Plan (51,142)        (68,875)        
Principal payment on pension debt (184,675)       (6,662)          
Interest paid on pension debt (11,740)        (14,041)        

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 120,836        110,615        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earnings 57,373          21,793          

Net cash provided by investing activities 57,373          21,793          

Net decrease in cash (165,590)       (253,827)       

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of year 6,360,057     6,613,884     

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year $ 6,194,467     6,360,057     

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2012 2011

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in 
operating activities:

Operating loss $ (332,018)       (538,849)       

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net 
cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation 105,948        99,224          
Other, net (3,406)          164,625        

Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (30,000)        -                  
Assessments receivable (36,104)        (37,051)        
Prepaid expense (1,500)          10,830          

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (12,365)        (25,988)        
Accrued wages and related payables (9,142)          10,584          
Customer deposits (1,108)          -                  
Compensated absences (6,452)          8,303           
Other post employment benefits payable 1,000           962              

Total adjustments 6,871           231,489        

Net cash used in operating activities $ (325,147)       (307,360)       

Non-cash investing, capital and financing transactions:

Change in fair-market value of investments $ 10,357          9,865           

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents $ -                  29,443          
Due from other governments 161,906        81,321          

Total assets $ 161,906        110,764        

Due to other governments $ 161,906        110,764        

Total liabilities $ 161,906        110,764        

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Assets

Liabilities
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District (District) was formed in 1932 under the statutory 
authority of the California Water Code. Its function is to conduct water spreading operations by capturing 
flood flows of the Santa Ana River and Mill Creek. Spreading enables the water to percolate into the 
groundwater basin for the benefit of all producers.  

The District is comprised of approximately 50,000 acres of land. Within its boundaries are several 
municipal water purveyors, public utilities, and other (mutual and private) companies who supply water 
needs. The source of such water is the groundwater basin underlying the District, of which an average of 
150,000 acre-feet per year is extracted through some 300 producing wells by approximately 150 different 
producers. 

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (an amendment of No. 14). The District is the 
primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected 
by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which 
the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially 
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to 
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District 
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses 
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period 
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the 
related cash flows take place. 

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which 
each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Management, administration and depreciation 
expenses are also considered operating expenses.  Other revenues and expenses not included in the above 
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

C.  Financial Reporting 

The District’s basic financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of 
Governmental  Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – 
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments” (GASB No. 34). This 
statement established revised financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout 
the United States for the purpose of enhancing the understandability and usefulness of financial reports.  
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

C.  Financial Reporting, continued 

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncements provide for a revised view of financial information 
and restructure the format of financial information provided prior to its adoption. A statement of net 
assets replaces the balance sheet and reports assets, liabilities, and the difference between them as net 
assets, not equity. A statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets replaces both the income 
statement and the statement of changes in retained earnings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also 
requires that the statement of cash flows be prepared using the direct method. Under the direct method, 
cash flows from operating activities are presented by major categories.  

Under GASB No. 34, enterprise funds, such as the District, have the option of consistently following or 
not following pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) subsequent 
to November 30, 1989. The District has elected not to follow FASB standards issued after that date, 
unless such standards are specifically adopted by GASB. 

D.    Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets 

1. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts.  The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

3. Investments  

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for 
that fiscal year.  Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or 
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.   

4. Property Taxes and Assessments 

Secured property taxes are levied against real property and are due and payable in two equal 
installments. The first installment is due on November 1 and becomes delinquent if not paid by April 
10. Unsecured personal property taxes are due on July 1 each year. These taxes become delinquent if 
not paid by August 31. 

The District assesses its property taxes through the County tax rolls. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenue when they are both measurable and available.  

5. Compensated Absences 

The District records the cost of vested vacation and sick leave as it is earned. Vacation pay is payable 
to employees at the time vacation is taken or upon termination of employment. Employees may 
receive payment for unused sick leave upon termination according to a predetermined vesting 
schedule. 
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D.    Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, Continued 

6. Concentrations 

The District has two primary sources of revenue. One is the groundwater charge levied to entities who 
extract water from the groundwater basin underlying the District. The amount of rainfall in the area as 
well as additional allocations of state project water to the neighboring water districts can have a 
significant effect on the amount of water extracted. The second major source of revenue is from 
mining activities on District property. The level of building activity in the region may have significant 
impact on mining revenues. 

7. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $1,000 and an estimated useful life of five years. 
Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or 
other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the 
respective balances and any gains or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

 Buildings – 40-50 years 
 Vehicles and equipment – 5 – 10 years 
 Office equipment – 3 – 10 years 
 Field equipment –  5 – 10 years 
 Spreading basins – 50+ years 
 Improvements  

o Structural – 40 years 
o Furnishings – 10 years 

8. Budgetary Policies 

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. 
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with 
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for 
commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services. 

9. Net Assets 

The financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets are categorized as follows: 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net assets consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net 
assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

 Unrestricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not 
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. 
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(2) Cash and Investments 

 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy  

Under provisions of the District’s investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the 
California Government Code, the District may invest the following types of investments: 

 Securities of the U. S. Government, or its agencies 
 Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) placed with commercial banks  
      and/or savings and loan companies 
 State of California – Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
 Investment Trust of California – CalTRUST 
 Checking accounts or passbook savings account demand deposits 
 Money market mutual funds 

The District’s investment policy is to apply the prudent-person rule: Investments are made as a prudent 
person would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve 
capital and, in general, avoid speculative investments. The District’s investment policy does not contain 
any specific provisions intended to limit its exposure to a concentration of credit risk. 

Cash and investments as of June 30, are classified in the Statement of Net Assets as follows:

2012 2011

Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,194,467  6,360,057  

Agency Fund:

Cash and cash equivalents -              29,443      

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 6,194,467  6,389,500  

Cash and investments as of June 30, consist of the following:

2012 2011

Cash on hand $ -              200          
Deposits with financial institutions 219,030    122,014    
Deposits held with the California Local Agency Investment Fund 443,109    6,267,286  
Deposits held with the CalTRUST Medium-Term Fund 5,532,328  -              

Total cash and investments $ 6,194,467  6,389,500  

As of June 30, the District's authorized deposits had the following maturities:

2012 2011

California Local Agency Investment Fund 268 days 237 days
Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST Medium-Term Fund) 675 days 581 days
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(2) Cash and Investments, Continued 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the 
District’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits:  

The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or 
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged 
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies.  Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 held at each institution were federally insured and the 
remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are 
not held in the District’s name. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Code and the District’s investment 
policy contains legal and policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments 
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment 
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).  

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is 
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate 
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows 
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time as 
necessary to provide for cash flow requirements and liquidity needed for operations.   

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-
end for each investment type. 
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(2) Cash and Investments, Continued 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one 
issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no investments in any 
one issuer (other than for U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that 
represent 5% or more of total District’s investments at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

(3) Advance to Wash Plan 

The District provides various funding for Wash Plan operations on behalf of interested parties. Amounts 
are to be reimbursed to the District based on the Plan’s formative agreement. 

Changes in advances to Wash Plan at June 30, were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

(4) Capital Assets 

 
 

 

 

 

2011 Advances Receipts 2012

$ 110,764        51,142          -                  161,906        

2010 Advances Receipts 2011

$ 41,889          68,875          -                  110,764        

Changes in capital assets for 2012 were as follows:

Balance Disposals/ Balance
2011 Additions Transfers 2012

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 219,383        -                  -                  219,383        

Total non-depreciable assets 219,383        -                  -                  219,383        

Depreciable assets:
Buildings 1,169,347     5,500           -                  1,174,847     
Vehicles and equipment 140,484        -                  -                  140,484        
Office equipment 174,534        -                  -                  174,534        
Field equipment 195,549        13,152          -                  208,701        
Concrete basins 330,192        -                  -                  330,192        
Improvements 94,404          -                  -                  94,404          
Equipment 13,638          -                  -                  13,638          

Total depreciable assets 2,118,148     18,652          -                  2,136,800     

Less accumulated depreciation: (876,827)       (105,948)       -                  (982,775)       

Total accumulated depreciation: (876,827)       (87,296)        -                  (982,775)       

Total capital assets, net $ 1,460,704     1,373,408     
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(4) Capital Assets, Continued 

 
 (5) Compensated Absences 

 
(6) Long-Term Debt 
Deferred Revenue 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993, the District entered into an agreement for the extraction of 
rock, sand and gravel from its Section 7 property (Wash Area). As part of this agreement, the District 
received a $5,000,000 prepayment against future rentals and royalties to be received. The lease terms 
initially called for a commencement date of December 31, 2002. The agreement was subsequently 
amended during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 and restated the date for the commencement of 
operations within the Wash Area to be upon the Wash Plan, which is currently slated for the fiscal year 
2012-2013 or later. The initial term of the lease is for ten years with four successive five-year renewal 
periods, minimum annual rent of $1,000,000, and a minimum aggregate excavation of 12,000,000 tons of 
material. In the event the lease is unable to obtain necessary permits for operations within the Wash Area 
within fours years of commencement date, the amounts prepaid would then become refundable without 
interest, upon a one year notice.  

The changes to compensated absences balances at June 30, were as follows:

Balance Balance

2011 Additions Deletions 2012 Current Long Term

$ 69,798          49,201          (55,653)        63,346          14,498          48,848          

Balance Balance

2010 Additions Deletions 2011 Current Long Term

$ 61,495          44,757          (36,454)        69,798          39,934          29,864          

Changes in capital assets for 2012 were as follows:

Balance Disposals/ Balance
2011 Additions Transfers 2012

Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 219,383        -                  -                  219,383        

Total non-depreciable assets 219,383        -                  -                  219,383        

Depreciable assets:
Buildings 1,169,347     5,500           -                  1,174,847     
Vehicles and equipment 140,484        -                  -                  140,484        
Office equipment 174,534        -                  -                  174,534        
Field equipment 195,549        13,152          -                  208,701        
Spreading basins 330,192        -                  -                  330,192        
Improvements 94,404          -                  -                  94,404          
Equipment 13,638          -                  -                  13,638          

Total depreciable assets 2,118,148     18,652          -                  2,136,800     

Less accumulated depreciation: (876,827)       (105,948)       -                  (982,775)       

Total accumulated depreciation: (876,827)       (87,296)        -                  (982,775)       

Total capital assets, net $ 1,460,704     1,373,408     
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(7) Pension-Related Debt 

At of June 30, 2003, CalPERS implemented risk pooling for the District’s multiple-employer public 
employee defined benefit pension plan.  As a result, the District Plan converted from an agent multiple-
employer plan to a cost sharing multiple-employer plan. 

A portion of the District’s annual required contributions are actuarially determined and shared by all 
employers of the risk pool, the District is also required to make payments to a Side Fund which was 
created when the District entered the risk pool.  The responsibility for funding the Side Fund is specific to 
the District and is not shared by all employers in the Plan.  Therefore, the Side Fund falls under the 
definition of pension-related debt, as described in GASB Statement No. 27.  The payments on the Side 
Fund represent principal and interest payments on the pension-related debt.  Interest is reported as interest 
expense and the principal is reported as a reduction of the liability.  In 2012, the District paid off the 
remaining balance of the Side Fund. 

Changes in the pension-related debt at June 30, is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(8) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing 
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for participating public agencies within the State of 
California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and the Agency. 
Copies of CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from their executive Office: 400 P Street, 
Sacramento, CA, 95814. 

Funding Policy  

The contribution rate for plan members in the CalPERS, under funding Policy 2.5% at 55 Risk Pool 
Retirement Plan is 7% of their annual covered salary and is paid 85% by the District.  The District makes 
these contributions required of District employees on their behalf and for their account.  Also, the District 
is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for 
its members. The required employer contribution rates are equal to the annual pension costs (APC) 
percentage of payroll for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 as noted below.  The contribution requirements 
of the plan members are established by State statute, and the employer contribution rate is established and 
may be amended by CalPERS.  At fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the District did not have an 
unfunded pension liabilities.  For Fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, the District’s annual contributions for 
the CalPERS plan were equal to the Agencies required and actual contributions for each fiscal year as 
follows:   

Changes in pension related debt for 2012 were as follows: 

2011 Additions Payments 2012

184,675        -                  (184,675)       -                  

184,675        -                  (184,675)       -                  

Changes in pension related debt for 2011 were as follows: 

2010 Additions Payments 2011

191,337        -                  (6,662)          184,675        

191,337        -                  (6,662)          184,675        
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(8) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, Continued 

Three Year Trend Information: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(9) Other Post –Employment Benefits Payable 

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 45, which changed the accounting and financial reporting 
used by local government employers for post employment benefits. Previously, the costs of such benefits 
were generally recognized as expenses of local government employers on a pay-as-you-go basis. The new 
reporting requirements for these benefit programs as they pertain to the District are set forth below.  

Plan Description – Eligibility  

The District pays the level set by the Board for Employees for the cost of health insurance for retirees 
under the plans offered by the District until the retiree qualifies for Medicare, subject to limits determined 
by the Board of the District. 

 
Plan Description – Benefits 

The District offers post-employment medical benefits to retired employees who satisfy the eligibility 
requirements.  Spouses and surviving spouses are also eligible to receive benefits.  Retirees may enroll in 
any medical plan available through the District.  The contribution requirements of eligible retired 
employees and the District are established and may be amended by the Board of Directors 

Funding Policy 

The District is required to contribute the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of the Employer, an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each 
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty 
years.  The current ARC rate is 0.2% of the annual covered payroll. 

The District will pay up to 100% of the cost of the post-employment benefit plan.  The District funds the 
plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and maintains reserves (and records a liability) for the difference between 
pay-as-you-go and the actuarially determined ARC cost. 

Three Year Trend Information:

Annual Percentage Net APC

Fiscal Pension of APC Pension Percentage

Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation of Payroll

2009-2010 149,714        100% -              13.320%

2010-2011 50,376          100% -              13.897%

2011-2012 60,204          100% -              14.532%

Membership in the OPEB plan consisted of the following members as of June 30:

2012 2011 2010

Active plan members 5              5              8              
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits -           -           -           
Separated plan members entitled to but not

yet receiving benefits -           -           -           

Total plan membership 5              5              8              
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(9) Other Post –Employment Benefits Payable, Continued 

Annual Cost 

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the District’s ARC cost was $1,000 based on a 30 year amortization of 
the unfunded actuarial liability. The District’s net OPEB obligation amounted to $1,000 for the year 
ended June 30, 2012. The District contributed $3,118 to reserves for future costs to fully fund its current 
liability for retirement medical benefits as of June 30, 2012. The District intends to budget this 

contribution for future years based on its reserve policy.  
 

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the 
net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2012 and the two preceding years were as follows: 

 

The balance at June 30, consists of the following:

2012 2011 2010
   
Annual OPEB expense:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,000        962          -           
Interest on net OPEB obligation -           -           -           
Adjustment to annual required contribution -           -           -           

Total annual OPEB expense 1,000        962          -           

Change in net OPEB payable obligation:
Age adjusted contributions made -           -           -           

Total change in net OPEB payable obligation 1,000        962          -           

OPEB payable – beginning of year 962          -           -           

OPEB payable – end of year $ 1,962        962          -           

Fiscal Annual Age Percentage Net OPEB
Year OPEB Adjusted of Annual OPEB Obligation

Ended Cost ContributionCost Contributed Payable

2012 $ 1,000        -           0.00% $ 1,000           
2011 962          -           0.00% 962              
2010* -           -           0.00% -              

* The information for the two preceding years is unavailable.
GASB No. 45 was implemented in fiscal year 2011.

Three-Year History of Net OPEB Obligation

Package Page 50 of 96



San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 
 

26 

(10) Net Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(11) Lease Agreements 

The District is the lessor, in various lease agreements, providing for the excavation and removal of rock, 
gravel, sand, and other materials from District property. Monthly lease payments are generally based on 
tonnage of materials removed, subject to annual minimum amounts.  

The Redlands Plaza Enterprise Fund is the lessor of commercial building space under operating leases 
expiring in various years through the year ending in calendar year June 30, 2016. 

Minimum future rentals to be received on non-cancelable leases as of June 30, are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Calculation of net assets as of June 30, were as follows:

2012 2011

Unrestricted net assets:
Non-spendable net assets:

Prepaid expenses $ 1,500           -              

Total non-spendable net assets 1,500           -              

Spendable net assets:
Spendable net assets 1,583,981     1,421,926     

Total spendable net assets 1,583,981     1,421,926     

Total unrestricted net assets 1,585,481     1,421,926     

Total net assets $ 2,958,889     2,882,630     

Redlands 
Year Plaza

2013 $ 119,325        
2014 95,443          
2015 92,064          
2016 50,980          
2017 14,275          

$ 372,087        
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(12)    Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is insured for a 
variety of potential exposures.  The following is a summary of the insurance policies carried by the 
District as of June 30, 2012: 

 Property: Actual property loss varying by property type with a $1,000 deductible. 

 Vehicles/Mobile Equipment:  Actual property loss varying by equipment with a $500/$1000 
deductible. 

 General Liability: $1,000,000 excess insurance per occurrence. 

 Auto Liability: $1,000,000 

 Crime, Computer Fraud, Forgery, and Dishonesty coverage: $100,000 per claim with a $1,000 
deductible. 

 Employers Liability: $2,000,000 per accident employee by disease 

 Workers compensation: $2,000,000 each accident or each employee by disease. 

 
(13) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June 
30, 2012, that have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 60 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements. This standard address how to account for and report service concession 
arrangements, a type of public-private or public-public partnership that state and local governments are 
increasingly entering into. This statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2011.  The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial 
statements has not been assessed at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity, Omnibus.  This 
standard is designed to improve financial reporting for governmental entities by amending the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and local Governments.  
This statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.  The impact 
of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this 
time. 
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(13) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 62 

In December 2010, The GASB issued Statement No. 62 – Codification of Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The 
objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting 
and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:  

1. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations  
2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions  
3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ 

(AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure.  

Hereinafter, these pronouncements collectively are referred to as the “FASB and AICPA 
pronouncements.” This Statement also supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby 
eliminating the election provided in paragraph 7 of that Statement for enterprise funds and business-type 
activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB Statements and Interpretations that do not conflict with 
or contradict GASB pronouncements. However, those entities can continue to apply, as other accounting 
literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements, including this Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The provisions of this Statement generally are 
required to be applied retroactively for all periods presented. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63 

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.  This standard is designed to improve 
financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by 
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets.  This statement is effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012.  The impact of the implementation of this 
Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 64 

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments:  Application of Hedge 
Accounting Termination Provisions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53.  This standard is 
designed to improve financial reporting by clarifying the circumstances in which hedge accounting should 
continue when a swap counterparty, or swap counterparty’s credit support provider, is replaced.  This 
statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The impact 
of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this 
time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65 

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65 – Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. 
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The impact of the implementation of 
this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this time. 
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(13) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 66 

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 66 – Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that 
resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The provisions of 
this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The 
impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed 
at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves 
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that 
is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of 
existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-
useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and creating 
additional transparency. 

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and 
Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as 
they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent 
arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of 
Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Statement. 
The provisions of Statement 68 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. The impact of 
the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this 
time. 

(13) Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. 
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, 
will not materially affect its financial condition. 

(14) Subsequent Events 

Events occurring after June 30, 2012 have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial 
statements or disclosure as of September 28, 2012, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued.   
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Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Plan  

 
The most recent valuation (dated November 1, 2011) includes an Actuarial Accrued Liability and 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability of $3,118. There are no plan assets because the District funds on a 
pay-as-you-go basis. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) for the 
year ended June 30, 2011 was $429,422. The ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to annual 
covered payroll is 0.73%. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision 
as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.   

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the 
time of each valuation and the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that 
point. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial calculations, actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 

 

 

Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

11/1/2011 -           3,118        3,118           0.00% 429,422        0.73%

* The information for the two preceding years is unavailable.
GASB No. 45 was implemented in fiscal year 2011.

Required Supplemental Information – Schedule of Funding Progress

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods:

Valuation date November 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal actuarial cost method
Amortization method Level percent of payroll amortization
Remaining amortization period 30 Years as of the valuation date
Asset valuation method 30 Year smoothed market
Actuarial assumptions:
   Investment rate of return 4.00%
   Projected salary increase 3.00%
   Inflation - discount rate 4.00%
   Individual salary growth 3.00%
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2012 2011

Operating revenues:
Groundwater assessments:

Groundwater charge assessment – Agricultural $ 81,436          65,686          
Groundwater charge assessment – Non-Agricultural 589,756        535,780        

Water spreading operations 157,298        -                  
Services for other agencies 30,000          30,000          

Total operating revenues 858,490        631,466        

Operating expenses:
Water spreading operations:

Professional services 167,750        281,386        
Field Operations 30,899          31,476          
Vehicle operations 3,512           1,374           
Utilities 26,601          24,088          
Benefits 175,040        174,796        
Salaries/staff 405,891        363,997        
Equipment 80,128          23,873          

Total water spreading operations 889,821        900,990        

Regional programs:
Regional programs LAFCO contribution 1,028           2,194           

Total regional programs 1,028           2,194           

General and administrative:
Administrative expense 2,972           6,693           
Director's fees/expense 123,721        92,231          
General and administrative 58,632          46,393          
Insurance 8,386           22,590          

Total general and administrative 193,711        167,907        

Total operating expenses 1,084,560     1,071,091     

Operating loss before depreciation expense (226,070)       (439,625)       
Depreciation expense (105,948)       (99,224)        

Operating loss $ (332,018)       (538,849)       

Package Page 58 of 96



San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Schedules of Wash Plan Revenues and Expenses 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

32  

 

 

2012 2011

Revenues:
Wash Plan – EIS $ -              33,693          
Interest income -              3                 

-              33,696          

Expenses:
Professional services 40,298          34,720          
Environmental services 6,294           9,898           
Legal expenses 4,550           23,147          
Other -                  994              

$ 51,142          68,875          
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Directors 
San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Redlands, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
(District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 28, 2012.  We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audits, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 

Charles Z. Fedak & Company, CPA’s - An Accountancy Corporation 
Cypress, California 
September 28, 2012 
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Board of Directors 
San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Redlands, California 

Dear Members of the Board: 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of San Bernardino Valley Water 
Conservation District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of District’s internal control. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that adversely 
affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood 
that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be 
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected. 

Our consideration on internal control was for the limited period described in the first paragraph and would 
not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses.   
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Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations 

None noted 

Status of Comments and Recommendations Made in the Previous Year 

Audit Preparation 

While conducting our audit, we noted that obtaining a complete and accurate final general ledger as well 
as supporting schedules for account balances that were acceptable to the auditor took an extensive amount 
of time. These factors contributed to significant delays in the ability to begin our audit and finalize the 
year-end financial statements.  We recommend that the District examine current accounting and financial 
reporting needs and requirements and improve and/or acquire skills concerning the preparation of 
supporting schedules for balances recorded in the general ledger. This training will lead to personnel who 
are more efficient, effective, and communicative with the auditors in regard to accounting and financial 
matters. 

Management’s Response  

The District has made significant changes in the year under audit.  Changes in staffing at both, 
management, accounting staff, and external auditor made the audit more difficult for staff and auditors. 
The District also moved to an enterprise approach for accounting and significantly improved the tracking 
of costs and expenses.  This transition created some of the difficulty the auditor encountered.  While the 
District believes it has made excellent progress in financial reporting, the District is undertaking efforts to 
make staffing changes to insure it can produce schedules incorporated into the general ledger for audit 
purposes.  

Current Year Assessment 

During fiscal year 2012, the District engaged the services of an outside accounting firm to assist 
with various accounting functions and provide support for the preparation of the District’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  We believe this action serves to 
mitigate our comment with regard to audit preparation made in the prior year. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Auditor Independence 

While conducting our audit, we noted a reliance on the District’s auditor to identify and resolve 
accounting issues that should be part of the District’s year-end accounting function.  Auditing standards 
require that the external auditor be both independent in both perception and in fact.  Since the 
performance of these non-attest services could impair the auditor’s independence, we believe that the 
District should consider options to strengthen controls over the District’s accounting department and 
financial reporting process. 

Management’s Response  

See response to item No. 1.  Services previously provided or coordinated by the auditor were historically 
relied upon to close the District’s books for the year. Changes in auditors and staffing will necessitate 
developing capacity to perform year end accounting functions. The District is committed to develop these 
capacities in staff or contract support to avoid any change of impairing auditor independence.  

Current Year Assessment 

During fiscal year 2012, the District engaged the services of an outside accounting firm to assist 
with various accounting functions and provide support for the preparation of the District’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  We believe this action serves to 
mitigate our comments with regard to internal control over financial reporting and auditor 
independence made in the prior year. 
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Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications 

As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted 
before the start of the audit. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in 
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with 
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of 
the scope and extent of the audit process we have noted here that there are no audit adjustments this year: 
however, certain reclassification adjustments were needed for financial reporting purposes. There can be 
very reasonable explanations for situations of having numerous adjustments as well as having no 
adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of the adjustments and reclassifications that 
were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better understanding of the scope of the audit.  

Management’s Response  

We have reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided by the 
auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system to close-out the District’s 
year-end trial balance. 

Current Year Assessment 

During our audit of the District’s financial statements at June 30, 2012, we noted no adjusting 
journal entries. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Directors of 
the District.  This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of 
public record. 

We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during our examination.  We would be pleased 
to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience.  Please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 
 
 
 
Charles Z. Fedak & Company, CPA’s – An Accountancy Corporation 
Cypress, California 
September 28, 2012 
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Board of Directors 
San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
Redlands, California 
 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
(District) for the year ended June 30, 2012 and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2012. 
Generally accepted auditing standards require that we provide the Governing Board and management 
with the following information related to our audit of the District’s basic financial statements. 

Auditor’s Responsibility under United States Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our Audit Engagement Letter dated April 27, 2012, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the basic financial statements prepared by 
management with oversight of the Governing Board are fairly presented, in all material respects, in 
conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve the Governing Board or management of its responsibilities of oversight in the 
District’s external financial reporting process or any other processes.  

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Governmental Auditing Standards. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.  

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing requirements previously 
communicated to management during our interim fieldwork. 
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Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.  

We noted no transactions entered into by the District during fiscal year 2012 for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the 
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred. 

Management’s Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures 

Accounting estimates play an integral part in the preparation of basic financial statements by management 
and are based upon management’s knowledge, experience and current judgment(s) about past and current 
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the basic financial statements and because of the possibility that future 
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) 
affecting the position in the basic financial statements is (are): 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of cash and investments is based on information provided by 
financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of 
cash and investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each 
capitalized item’s useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of the other post-employment benefits payable is based on an actuarial 
evaluation of this liability that was prepared via a third-party actuarial software package. We 
evaluated the basis, actuarial methods and assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the annual 
required contribution for the District to determine that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear. Certain basic financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. 
The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting the basic financial statements is (are): 

The disclosure of fair value of cash and investments in Note 2 to the basic financial statements 
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations. 

The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 4 to the basic financial statements is based on historical 
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.    

The disclosure of the District’s other post-employment benefits payable in Note 9 to the basic 
financial statements is based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from actual costs. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Generally Accepted Auditing Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified during the audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management as follows: 

There were no audit adjustments and/or reclassification entries made to the original trial balance 
presented to us to begin our audit.  
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves the 
application of an accounting principal to the District’s basic financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditor. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit processes and testwork.   

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be 
significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit of the District. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management 
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated September 28, 2012 

Conclusion 

We appreciate the cooperation extended us by Daniel Cozad, General Manager, in the performance of our 
audit testwork. 

We will be pleased to respond to any question you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the 
opportunity to continue to be of service to the District.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified, parties. This restriction is 
not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public record. 
 
 
 
 
 
Charles Z. Fedak & Company, CPA’s – An Accountancy Corporation 
Cypress, California 
September 28, 2012 
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   Memorandum No. 1132

To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   General Manager, Daniel Cozad 
 
Date:  October 31, 2012 
 
Subject: Approval of Final Collaborative Agreement with San Bernardino Valley Municipal  

Water District (SBVMWD) and Western Municipal Water District (WMWD)  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve the final agreement with SBVMWD and WMWD and authorize 
Board President to execute the agreement.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Board approved participation in the Collaborative Process to develop a new agreement with 
SBVMWD and WMWD in October 2010 and the principals were approved in December 2011.  Since that 
time legal counsel and general managers of the agencies have worked to detail the final draft agreement.  
The latest version of the document will be provided to the Board under separate cover for review and 
discussion at the meeting.   At the August 29, 2012, and October 10, 2012 Board meetings the Board 
approved revisions to the agreement and direction to staff on negotiating. The current version implements 
the changes in the term of the agreement to 25 years with five, 5 year extensions at mutual agreement 
 
STATUS 
SBVMWD Board approved the agreement at its September 18th and October 16th meetings and WMWD 
approved the agreement at its October 3rd and October 17th board meetings.  Direction was provided to staff 
as to the term of the agreement and the current version is in accordance with the direction of the Board.  
Staff billed SBVMWD for all prior year Easement Agreement charges and payment is scheduled before the 
end of the month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost to develop the agreement is included in the approved budget.  The overall impact of the agreement 
is to provide $350,000 in annual funding which was incorporated into the budget for 2012-13.  The year 
over year impact will be to increase revenue to the District over the term of the agreement offset in part by 
increasing groundwater enterprise costs for services and elimination of some reimbursements under prior 
agreements. 
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EXEMPT GOVERNMENT AGENCY Per Government Code Sec. 6103 1 
 2 
By________________________________________________________ 3 
        District Secretary, San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 4 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

 6 
 7 

AGREEMENT TO DEVELOP AND OPERATE ENHANCED RECHARGE FACILITIES 8 
 9 
 10 
 This Agreement to Develop and Operate Enhanced Recharge Facilities ("Agreement") is 11 
entered into and effective this 1st day of October, 2012 by and among the San Bernardino Valley 12 
Water Conservation District (the "Conservation District"), the San Bernardino Valley 13 
Municipal Water District ("Valley District") and Western Municipal Water District of Riverside 14 
County ("Western").  The Conservation District, Valley District and Western are each 15 
sometimes referred to as a "Party" and are collectively sometimes referred to as the "Parties." 16 
 17 
 18 

Recitals 19 
 20 

 A. General Purposes. 21 
 22 
  (1) The Parties each hold water rights to the waters of the Santa Ana River 23 
and each own and operate facilities that serve to divert and/or store the waters of the Santa Ana 24 
River.  Furthermore, each Party possesses critical assets and unique skills that the other Parties 25 
do not possess. 26 
 27 
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  (2) The Parties wish to collaboratively use all of their respective assets and 28 
skills, including but not limited to water rights and facilities necessary or useful for the diversion 29 
and storage of water, to improve the reliability of local water supplies for their respective 30 
constituents by establishing a collaborative partnership to coordinate the use of their separate 31 
resources for mutual advantage. 32 
 33 
  (3) The Parties specifically wish to collaborate by increasing opportunities to 34 
recharge local surface water supplies, as well as State Project Water, in the San Bernardino Basin 35 
Area (the "SBBA"); by reducing the time and cost required to permit and construct essential 36 
public infrastructure (such as spreading basins); and by working together to achieve an efficient 37 
division of labor in the operation and maintenance of water infrastructure. 38 
 39 
  (4.) The Parties acknowledge that their water resource management activities 40 
in the Santa Ana River wash area proceed in concert with other uses of the lands in that area, 41 
including the mining of sand and gravel mineral deposits pursuant to existing leases, and habitat 42 
conservation and management, pursuant to a series of multi-agency cooperative initiatives 43 
involving local, state, and federal resource management and control agencies.  The Parties' goal 44 
is to harmonize their water resource activities with these other uses, for the optimization of 45 
coordinated use by all. 46 
 47 
  (5) The Parties wish to memorialize their joint understandings by means of 48 
this Agreement. 49 
 50 
 B. Findings. 51 
 52 
  (1) The Parties agree that they must increase groundwater storage in the 53 
SBBA in order to meet current and future demands for water among their constituents. 54 
 55 
  (2) In the past, reasonable disagreements among the Parties have added 56 
unintentional and undesirable costs and complexity to the planning and permitting of important 57 
water resources projects in the region. 58 
 59 
  (3) The Parties believe that it is in their best interests, and the best interest of 60 
the public they serve, to cooperate in increasing the available water supply by establishing a new 61 
and more productive working relationship. 62 
 63 

(4) In certain years, wet weather conditions and increased availability of State 64 
Project Water can create a limited opportunity to improve the reliability of local water supplies 65 
by increasing recharge and storage to groundwater.  These favorable conditions are temporary 66 
and perishable.  Therefore, time is of the essence.  New inter-agency operating agreements 67 
should be established immediately in order to make the most of this and future opportunities 68 
because they occur on an irregular and unpredictable basis. 69 

 70 
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(5) Because of the limited and sporadic opportunities to augment local water 71 
supplies, the Parties intend for this Agreement to continue for a long period, thereby allowing the 72 
utilization of such limited water supplies. 73 

 74 
 75 

Agreements 76 
 77 
1. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date first written 78 

above and shall continue for a term of twenty five (25) years (“Initial Term”)  , unless 79 
terminated earlier as provided in this Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended by 80 
written agreement among all parties for up to five additional, consecutive five year terms 81 
(“Extension Terms”), on the same terms and conditions stated herein, provided that prior 82 
to the expiration of the term then in effect, all parties agree in writing to the applicable 83 
extension, by action of their legislative bodies, to extend the Agreement for another term.   84 

2. Duties of the Conservation District. 85 

a. Lease of Facilities for the Purpose of Groundwater Recharge to Valley District 86 
and Western.  The Conservation District hereby leases to Valley District and 87 
Western, for the term of this Agreement and on the terms specified herein, the 88 
surface of the lands shown on Exhibit 1 during the term of this Agreement 89 
("Leased Property").  Exhibit 1A provides the legal description for the lands 90 
owned in fee by the Conservation District and Exhibit 1B provides the legal 91 
description of lands made available under existing easements under ownership by 92 
the Bureau of Land Management.  Exhibit 1 is attached hereto and incorporated 93 
herein by reference.  Valley District and Western shall have the right to enter 94 
upon and use the Leased Property, and any reasonably necessary subsurface areas 95 
incident thereto.  Such entry and use shall be only for the purpose of recharging, 96 
storing or conveying water from any source (collectively "recharging of water" 97 
herein) into or through the percolation basins and other facilities owned or 98 
controlled by the Conservation District, whether existing as of the effective date 99 
of this Agreement,  or as may be constructed pursuant to the terms of this 100 
Agreement, as such existing and contemplated future facilities are depicted in 101 
Exhibit 2, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference).  The 102 
Conservation District reserves all rights in and to the Leased Property not 103 
expressly conveyed as a part of this lease.  Specific terms of this lease are as 104 
follows: 105 

(1) Valley District and Western may construct, operate, maintain, repair, 106 
reconstruct and rehabilitate diversion facilities, recharge basins, pumps 107 
and other ancillary facilities or equipment located within the Leased 108 
Property as Valley District and Western may reasonably deem 109 
necessary for the recharging of water on the Leased Property, 110 
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recognizing that the Parties intend that the Conservation District shall 111 
be responsible for the operation and maintenance of such facilities. 112 

(2) Included within this lease are all rights of reasonable  ingress and egress 113 
as may be useful or necessary, in Valley District and/or Western's sole 114 
discretion, for the purpose of the recharging of water on the Leased 115 
Property, provided that such activities shall not interfere with:  (i) any 116 
conservation easements that may now exist, or may be established 117 
consistent with the Conservation District's Upper Santa Ana River 118 
Wash Land Management and Habitat Conservation Plan, on said lands, 119 
or (ii) other easements existing as of the effective date of this 120 
Agreement. 121 

(3) The designs for any such facilities or other tenant improvements must 122 
be approved, in advance by the Conservation District, which approval 123 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and are subject to any 124 
limitations on the Conservation's District's holding of the Leased 125 
Property.  The Conservation District shall cooperate reasonably with 126 
Valley District and Western to obtain local, state, or federal permits that 127 
may be required to construct or operate such facilities approved by the 128 
Conservation District. 129 

(4) The Conservation District will utilize its best efforts under all existing 130 
and future lease agreements and easements with other individuals, 131 
organizations or entities operating on the Leased Property to harmonize 132 
the objective of Valley District and Western making full use of the 133 
facilities on the Leased Property for the recharge of water, consistent 134 
with the hydrological design limitations of these facilities, with any 135 
competing uses of the properties on which such facilities are or may be 136 
located. 137 

(5) The Parties recognize that the Conservation District has negotiated lease 138 
agreements with mining companies that allow the Conservation District 139 
to engage in recharge of water that may periodically interfere with or 140 
prevent mining, without liability on the part of the Conservation 141 
District, which agreements are attached hereto as Exhibits 3 and 4.  The 142 
Conservation District represents and warrants that these are the only 143 
current agreements that authorize mining on the Leased Property, and 144 
represents and warrants that the copies of these agreements attached as 145 
Exhibits 3 and 4 are true and correct copies of those agreements.  Based 146 
on those representations, the Parties believe that they can 147 
collaboratively manage the recharge of water to avoid liability arising 148 
from any incompatibility between the recharging of water and any 149 
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activities otherwise authorized under the mining leases.  Toward this 150 
end, the Parties agree as follows: 151 

(a) During the winter season (from October 1 to March 31), the Parties 152 
will consult with each other on a regular basis to determine the 153 
quantity of water that may be recharged without interfering with 154 
mining operations. 155 

(b) In the event that the recharging of water threatens to substantially 156 
limit or interfere with mining operations, the Parties shall 157 
immediately confer to determine how to maximize the recharge 158 
without unduly interfering with mining activity.  Towards this end, 159 
the parties acknowledge that the Conservation District has the 160 
right, from time to time and as it deems necessary in the exercise 161 
of its reasonable discretion, to utilize all or any portion of the areas 162 
subject to the mining leases for its water recharge, conservation, 163 
spreading, and other operations, provided such activities are 164 
undertaken utilizing best efforts to avoid storing water so as to 165 
require temporary use of the mining lease areas.  In connection 166 
with the exercise of their activities on the Leased Property  167 
hereunder, Valley District and Western shall assist the 168 
Conservation District to make every effort to minimize the time of 169 
any interruption of the mining lessees’ activities on the Leased 170 
Property, to permit sufficient time for the Conservation District to 171 
observe all requirements for notice to mining lessees required 172 
under the applicable leases in the event of conflicts, and to 173 
harmonize their recharge of water with the then-current and 174 
anticipated immediate future excavation and other activities of the 175 
mining lessees, with the overall goal that the mining activity and 176 
the water conservation activity can harmoniously exist, without 177 
interruption to either.   178 

(c) Any decisions about the proper scope, location, or amount of 179 
recharging of water after such consultation with appropriate 180 
agencies shall be made solely by the Conservation District in the 181 
exercise of its reasonable discretion, consistent with paragraph 4(d) 182 
(2) below, and consistent with the principle of ensuring that the 183 
optimum quantity of water possible is replenished within the San 184 
Bernardino Basin Area. 185 

In the event the Conservation District determines, in the exercise 186 
of its reasonable discretion, that portions of the Leased Property 187 
cannot be made available to Valley District and Western, and such 188 
determination is made at a time when water supplies are otherwise 189 
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immediately available to Valley District and Western for recharge 190 
into facilities on the leased land:, Conservation District will not 191 
object, directly or indirectly, to efforts by Valley District and/or 192 
Western to deliver water supplies that cannot be spread on the 193 
Leased Property to other locations, provided that in determining 194 
where to deliver such water supplies, Valley District and Western 195 
act consistent with the priority of first delivering water for direct 196 
delivery or spreading within the SBBA, then delivering water for 197 
direct delivery or spreading within the boundaries of Valley 198 
District, then delivering water for direct delivery, spreading or 199 
storage within Western, and then delivering water for direct 200 
delivery, spreading or storage outside of Western. 201 

In such event, the parties shall meet and confer in good faith, under 202 
the auspices of the Joint Operations Committee provided for in 203 
paragraph 4(b) below, regarding whether some proportional refund 204 
to Valley District, Western, or both of a portion the gross lease fee 205 
paid for the given year in which the Leased Premises were 206 
unavailable for the recharge of water may be appropriate, and if so, 207 
in what amount.   208 

b. Operation and Maintenance of Spreading Basins.  The Conservation District shall 209 
operate and maintain all new and existing facilities, located on the areas depicted 210 
in Exhibit 2 hereto, in good working condition, to ensure that the recharge of 211 
water continues efficiently, in accordance with a mutually-agreed schedule of 212 
regular maintenance and any supplemental agreements governing special or 213 
emergency maintenance responsibilities.  The Conservation District shall set aside 214 
a portion of the gross lease fee provided for in Paragraph 3(a) below received 215 
from Valley and Western, in accordance with the Conservation District's Reserve 216 
Policy, to ensure sufficient funds are available to meet the agreed maintenance 217 
obligations. 218 

c. Ownership of New Facilities Upon expiration or other proper termination of this 219 
Agreement, however, improvements made on land owned or controlled by the 220 
Conservation District shall become Conservation District property, to be used by 221 
the Conservation District for water management and the recharge of water. 222 

d. Groundwater Charge.  All parties producing water in the Conservation District’s 223 
jurisdictional boundaries shall be subject to all then-applicable groundwater 224 
charges, and this Agreement shall not exempt nor excuse any party, including 225 
Valley District and Western, from the levy or payment thereof.  Notwithstanding, 226 
the parties recognize that they do not intend that groundwater charges would be 227 
required to be paid on production of water pursuant to measures taken for the 228 
emergency alleviation of high groundwater conditions, or the implementation of 229 

Package Page 77 of 96



 

  
Agreement for Enhanced Recharge Projects 

October 2012 
Page 7 of 16 

 
 
1277620.2  

other basin management objectives as may be approved by the Basin Technical 230 
Advisory Commission (“BTAC”) or other similar organization including all of 231 
the parties hereto that may perform a substantially similar role under any 232 
Conjunctive Use Plan that may be implemented for the SBBA.  The Conservation 233 
District agrees to consider implementing reasonable measures to reduce or 234 
eliminate groundwater charges for groundwater production devoted to such 235 
agreed purposes, whether by exemption, or refund of charges otherwise paid, as 236 
may be consistent with applicable law.   237 

3. Duties of Valley District and Western.  238 

a. Gross Lease Fee.  Valley District and Western shall together pay to the 239 
Conservation District a gross lease fee of $350,000/year for the right to the 240 
recharge of water through the existing percolation basins and other facilities 241 
owned by the Conservation District, and the right to construct and have operated 242 
additional recharge and conveyance facilities on the Leased Property.  The parties 243 
acknowledge and affirm that the gross lease fee is a lease payment for access to 244 
and use of the Leased Property, only, and for partial offset to the costs of 245 
operation and maintenance of facilities thereon same by the Conservation District.  246 
The gross lease fee does not include, and is not intended to replace or offset, any 247 
charges for the acquisition, conveyance, storage, or production of water, that may 248 
otherwise apply by or among the parties, or third parties, whether now or in the 249 
future.   250 

b. Valley District and Western, or either of them, shall pay the gross lease fee, in 251 
advance, by October 1st of each year, which sum may be apportioned by the 252 
Conservation District to its Groundwater Enterprise and other funds. 253 

(1) Valley District and Western shall annually adjust the gross lease fee to 254 
account for inflation using the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 255 
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for the Los Angeles District.  The base 256 
year for such payments will be 2012. 257 

(2) In the event that Valley District and/or Western construct new 258 
percolation basins or other facilities useful or necessary for the recharge 259 
of water, the Parties shall adjust the gross lease fee proportionally to 260 
reflect the additional operation and maintenance costs that will be 261 
incurred by the Conservation District in operating and maintaining 262 
those new facilities, as may be agreeable to the Parties. 263 

c. Permitting for New or Augmented Spreading Basins.  Valley District and Western 264 
shall be responsible for obtaining all federal, state and local permits (including 265 
conducting environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act 266 
or the National Environmental Policy Act) that may be required to construct 267 
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additional facilities for the recharge of water supplied by Valley and Western.  If, 268 
after 10 years, Valley and Western have been unable to obtain the necessary 269 
permits, either or both may terminate this lease agreement subject to the 270 
provisions of paragraph 9.c. below.  Valley District and Western shall bear all 271 
costs associated with protecting, repairing or replacing the material infrastructure 272 
improvements (including pipelines, gates, valves, weirs, fencing, gauges, etc.) 273 
installed by Valley District and Western on lands owed by the Conservation 274 
District.  275 

d. Resource Management.   276 

(1) Valley District and Western shall coordinate their operations to 277 
harmonize with mineral resource extractions, to avoid any potential 278 
liability under mineral leases, or other uses authorized by the 279 
Conservation District on the Leased Property. 280 

(2) Valley District and Western shall negotiate supplemental payments to 281 
the Conservation District where unusual and unforeseen circumstances 282 
necessitate extraordinary maintenance expenses that are in excess of the 283 
budget prepared and approved by the Joint Operations Committee.  284 

(3) Valley District and Western shall cooperate with the Conservation 285 
District in developing a long-term resource management plan to govern 286 
multiple-use activities in Reach 5 of the Santa Ana River wash (i.e., the 287 
Upper Santa Ana River Wash Land Management and Habitat 288 
Conservation Plan). 289 

4. Duties of All Parties 290 

a. No Rights to Other Party(ies)' Water or Facilities.  Except as provided for in 291 
paragraph 2(c) above, the Conservation District will not assert any claim to own 292 
or control the new facilities constructed, or the additional water recharged by, 293 
Valley District and Western under the terms of this Agreement, provided that 294 
these activities occur in conformance with this Agreement.  Valley District and 295 
Western will not assert any claim to own or control any water that is percolated in 296 
the new or existing recharge basins that is not supplied by Valley District or 297 
Western, nor make any attempt to acquire or control land or facilities owned by 298 
the Conservation District..  Valley District and Western acknowledge and 299 
represent to Conservation District that this Agreement provides for and constitutes 300 
"compatible use" of the Conservation District's property and facilities, as that term 301 
is utilized in California Code of Civil Procedure sections 1240.510 et seq., 302 
thereby eliminating any need for any exercise of eminent domain by any party to 303 
acquire any additional interest in the Leased Property from any other party.  304 
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b. Establishment of Joint Operations Committee.  The Parties shall establish and 305 
participate in a Joint Operations Committee (the "JOC") to serve in an advisory 306 
capacity to the Conservation District, which shall assist the Conservation District 307 
to develop a schedule and budget for planned operation and maintenance 308 
activities relating to the recharge of water on the Leased Property, and perform 309 
other functions as otherwise specified herein, under such rules and procedures as 310 
it shall formulate and unanimously approve.  The JOC shall meet at least twice a 311 
year to plan water recharge, review financial and water accounting matters 312 
implicated hereunder, and review performance. 313 

c. Joint Reporting.  The Parties shall jointly provide planning documents, 314 
monitoring reports, and other records that may be requested by authorized 315 
agencies to demonstrate compliance with federal, state or local laws and 316 
regulations.  Specifically, the Parties shall continue to cooperate in the preparation 317 
and submission of annual reports to the California State Water Resources Control 318 
Board, which reports will follow the format used by the Parties in reporting the 319 
use of water for calendar year 2010.  A copy of the report filed with the California 320 
State Water Resources Control Board is attached hereto as Exhibit 5 and 321 
incorporated herein by reference. 322 

d. Water Resources Management.  323 

(1) The Parties will continue to coordinate all recharge of water with one 324 
another to protect and enhance the safe yield in the SBBA.   325 
Specifically, the Parties will:  (i) jointly develop the Regional 326 
Conjunctive Use Plan (or its equivalent) through the Basin Technical 327 
Advisory Committee, (ii) seek additional opportunities to increase safe 328 
yield in the SBBA by engaging in cooperative joint development of new 329 
water supply projects or conservation programs in the region, and (iii) 330 
cooperate with one another to document the water resource 331 
management benefits accrued by establishing and implementing this 332 
Agreement. 333 

(2) The parties agree to dedicate and use the water made available pursuant 334 
to their respective water rights in and to the Santa Ana River to give 335 
priority to preserving the safe yield of the SBBA, as part of the 336 
reasonable and prudent management of their entire portfolio of water 337 
resources. All parties shall refrain from contesting any water rights 338 
claimed or held by one another at any time during the term of this 339 
Agreement, so long as such water rights are exercised in the manner 340 
consistent with this Agreement.  341 

(3) The Parties will not export native water from the SBBA, or recharge 342 
water on behalf of agencies located outside the SBBA, except as 343 
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provided for by the 1969 Western Judgment and/or by the Regional 344 
Conjunctive Use Plan (or its equivalent). 345 

5. Amendments.  The Parties will negotiate amendments, including but not limited to areal 346 
expansion of the scope of activities, to this Agreement in good faith and not unreasonably 347 
withhold consent. 348 

6. Liberal Construction.  The Parties shall construe all terms and conditions in this 349 
Agreement in a manner which most favors increasing available water supplies by 350 
encouraging greater recharge of water in the area. 351 

7. Indemnification 352 

a. Generally.  Each Party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other 353 
Parties, their directors, officers, employees and agents from and against all 354 
damages, liabilities, claims, actions, demands, costs and expenses (including, but 355 
not limited to, costs of investigations, lawsuits and any other proceedings whether 356 
in law or in equity, settlement costs, attorneys' fees and costs), and penalties or 357 
violations of any kind, which arise out of, result from, or are related to a Party's 358 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement.  In extending such 359 
indemnification, however, no party hereto waives any sovereign or governmental 360 
immunities, privileges, or rights that they may have or enjoy under any applicable 361 
law, including but not limited to California Government Code sections 810 et 362 
seq., and except as otherwise specifically provided for hereunder, and each party 363 
reserves all such immunities, privileges and rights , and any claims or other 364 
procedures applicable to same, that may presently exist or hereafter be created, to 365 
themselves, as against each of the other parties, and as against any third party.  366 

b. Indemnification Procedures.  Any Party that is an indemnified party (the 367 
"Indemnified Party") that has a claim for indemnification against the other Party 368 
(the "Indemnifying Party") under this Agreement, shall promptly notify the 369 
Indemnifying Party in writing, specifying the nature of the claim, the grounds 370 
upon which the Indemnified Party believes the Indemnifying Party is liable in 371 
whole or in part for the liability or other obligation asserted under the claim, and 372 
including any appropriate demand for defense or indemnification, or both.  No 373 
delay on the part of the Indemnified Party in notifying the Indemnifying Party 374 
shall relieve the Indemnifying Party from any obligation unless (and then solely to 375 
the extent) the Indemnifying Party is prejudiced.  Further, the Indemnified Party 376 
shall promptly notify the Indemnifying Party of the existence of any claim, 377 
demand, or other matter to which the indemnification obligations apply, and shall 378 
give the Indemnifying Party a reasonable opportunity to defend the same at its 379 
own expense and with counsel of its own selection, provided that the Indemnified 380 
Party shall at all times also have the right to fully participate in the disputed 381 
matter at its own expense.  If the Indemnifying Party refuses to provide the 382 
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indemnity, or within a reasonable time after written notice from the Indemnified 383 
Party, fails to defend a claim, demand or other matter to which the 384 
indemnification obligations apply, the Indemnified Party shall have the right, but 385 
not the obligation, to undertake the defense of, and to compromise or settle 386 
(exercising reasonable business judgment), the claim or other matter, on behalf, or 387 
for the account, and at the risk, of the Indemnifying Party.  If the claim is one that 388 
cannot by its nature be defended solely by the Indemnifying Party, then the 389 
Indemnified Party shall make available all information and assistance to the 390 
Indemnifying Party that the Indemnifying Party may reasonably request.  In the 391 
event of any dispute between the Indemnified party and the Indemnifying Party as 392 
to whether the claim is one to which the indemnification obligations apply, the 393 
matter shall be resolved in the manner of resolution of disputes, as provided in 394 
paragraph 9 hereunder.  Except as specifically provided otherwise in Paragraph 395 
9(b) (4) below with respect to tolling of limitations periods, the notice provided 396 
for hereunder shall be in addition to, and not in place of, any other notice that may 397 
be provided for or otherwise required under law. 398 

8. Force Majeure.  In addition to any other specific provisions of this Agreement, a Party 399 
hereto shall not be deemed to be in default under this Agreement where failure or delay in 400 
performance of any of such Party's obligations under this Agreement is caused by floods, 401 
earthquakes, winds, other Acts of God, power outages, equipment failure, acts of 402 
vandalism, fires or other casualties, wars, riots or similar hostilities, strikes and other 403 
labor difficulties beyond the Party's control, (including the Party's employment force), 404 
enactment of new or conflicting, laws or regulations, including any new listing of 405 
endangered species or designation of critical habitat for endangered species, court actions 406 
(such as restraining orders or injunctions), judicial actions such as issuance of restraining 407 
orders and injunctions, or other causes beyond such Party's control.  If any one or more of 408 
such events occur, the term of this Agreement and the time for performance by any Party 409 
of any of its obligations hereunder shall be extended by the period of time that such one 410 
or more events prevented or delayed such performance, provided that the term of this 411 
Agreement shall not be extended under any circumstances for more than five (5) years.  412 
In the event that said period of time must be extended by more than five years, this 413 
Agreement shall automatically terminate. 414 

9. Administration of Agreement 415 

a. Books and Records.  Each Party shall have access to and the right to examine any 416 
of the other Party's pertinent books, documents, papers or other records 417 
(including, without limitation, records contained on electronic media) relating to 418 
the performance of that Party's obligations pursuant to this Agreement.    Each 419 
Party shall retain all such books, documents, papers or other records to facilitate 420 
such review in accordance with that Party's record retention policy.   Access to 421 
each Party's books and records shall be during normal business hours only.  422 
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Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any 423 
applicable privileges. 424 

b. Disputes.  The Parties recognize that there may be disputes regarding the 425 
obligations of the Parties or the interpretation of this Agreement.   The Parties 426 
agree that they may attempt to resolve disputes as follows: 427 

(1) Statement Describing Alleged Violation of Agreement.  A Party or 428 
Parties alleging a violation of this Agreement (the "Initiating 429 
Party(ies)") shall provide a written statement describing all facts that it 430 
believes constitute a violation of this Agreement to the Party(ies) 431 
alleged to have violated the terms of this Agreement (the "Responding 432 
Party(ies)"). 433 

(2) Response to Statement of Alleged Violation.  The Responding Party(ies) 434 
shall have sixty days from the date of the written statement to prepare a 435 
written response to the allegation of a violation of this Agreement and 436 
serve that response on the Initiating Party(ies) or to cure the alleged 437 
violation to the reasonable satisfaction of the Initiating Party(ies).  The 438 
Initiating Party(ies) and the Responding Party(ies) shall then meet 439 
within thirty days of the date of the response to attempt to resolve the 440 
dispute amicably. 441 

(3) Mediation of Dispute.  If the Initiating Party(ies) and the Responding 442 
Party(ies) cannot resolve the dispute within ninety days of the date of 443 
the written response, they shall engage a mediator, experienced in 444 
water-related disputes, to attempt to resolve the dispute.  Each Party 445 
shall ensure that it is represented at the mediation by a Director or 446 
Councilperson.  These representatives of the Initiating Party(ies) and the 447 
Responding Party(ies) may consult with staff and/or technical 448 
consultants during the mediation and such staff and/or technical 449 
consultants may be present during the mediation.  The costs of the 450 
mediator shall be divided evenly between the Initiating Party(ies) and 451 
the Responding Party(ies).  452 

(4) Prior to Claims Under California Tort Claims Act.  The Parties agree 453 
that the procedure described in this paragraph represents an effort to 454 
resolve disputes without the need for a formal claim under the 455 
California Tort Claims Act or other applicable law.  The period of time 456 
for the presentation of a claim by one Party against another shall be 457 
tolled for the period from the date on which the Initiating Party(ies) file 458 
a written statement until the date upon which the mediator renders a 459 
decision. 460 
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(5) Reservation of Rights.  Nothing in this paragraph shall require a Party to 461 
comply with a decision of the mediator and, after the completion of the 462 
mediation process described above, each Party shall retain and may 463 
exercise at any time all legal and equitable rights and remedies it may 464 
have to enforce the terms of this Agreement; provided, that prior to 465 
commencing litigation, a Party shall provide at least five calendar days' 466 
written notice of its intent to sue to all Parties. 467 

c. Termination of Agreement 468 

(1) Failure to Obtain Permits.  The Parties recognize and acknowledge that 469 
the implementation of this Agreement may require one or more Parties 470 
to obtain permits or other regulatory approvals from one or more local, 471 
state or federal regulatory agencies, including but not limited to the 472 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, the California Department of 473 
Fish & Game and the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service or the U.S. Army 474 
Corps of Engineers.  Because of the significant regulatory uncertainties 475 
associated with obtaining these permits or regulatory approvals, the 476 
Parties agree that, if Valley District and Western have not received all 477 
regulatory permits or approvals required or useful for groundwater 478 
replenishment on the Leased Property within ten years from the 479 
effective date of this Agreement, Valley District and/or Western may 480 
terminate this Agreement at any time by providing the Conservation 481 
District with one-year's written notice of such termination.  In the event 482 
that Valley District or Western, but not both wish to terminate this 483 
Agreement, the Party wishing to terminate this Agreement shall be 484 
allowed to terminate the Agreement as to itself and the remaining two 485 
Parties may continue the Agreement on such terms as they deem to be 486 
equitable. 487 

(2) Material Breach.  If one Party deems that another Party has materially 488 
breached one of the provisions of this Agreement, the Parties shall use 489 
the dispute resolution procedures set forth in paragraph  9. b.  above in 490 
an effort to resolve the dispute amicably.  If, the dispute resolution 491 
process described in paragraph  9. b. above is not successful in 492 
resolving the dispute, any Party may terminate this Agreement for 493 
material breach thereof, and may seek any remedy that it would 494 
otherwise be entitled to in a court of law. 495 

d. Recordation of Agreement.  All Parties agree that this Agreement constitutes a 496 
lease of certain lands by the Conservation District to Valley District and Western 497 
for the purpose of constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing and 498 
rehabilitating percolation basins and ancillary facilities on the Leased Property, 499 
and consequently, all Parties agree that this Agreement should be recorded in the 500 

Package Page 84 of 96



 

  
Agreement for Enhanced Recharge Projects 

October 2012 
Page 14 of 16 

 
 
1277620.2  

Official Records of the County of San Bernardino.  Valley District shall, within 501 
ten days of the effective date of this Agreement, cause this agreement to be 502 
recorded in the Official Records of the County of San Bernardino and shall 503 
promptly provide the Conservation District and Western with recorded copies of 504 
this Agreement upon receipt of such copies from the County of San Bernardino. 505 

10. General Provisions. 506 

a. Authority.  Each signatory of this Agreement represents that s/he is authorized to 507 
execute this Agreement on behalf of the Party for which s/he signs.  Each Party 508 
represents that it has legal authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform 509 
all obligations under this Agreement.  510 

b. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written 511 
instrument executed by each of the Parties to this Agreement. 512 

c. Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 513 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, except for its conflicts of law 514 
rules.  Any suit, action, or proceeding brought under the scope of this Agreement 515 
shall be brought and maintained to the extent allowed by law in the County of San 516 
Bernardino, California. 517 

d. Headings.  The paragraph headings used in this Agreement are intended for 518 
convenience only and shall not be used in interpreting this Agreement or in 519 
determining any of the rights or obligations of the Parties to this Agreement. 520 

e. Construction and Interpretation.  This Agreement has been arrived at through 521 
negotiations and each Party has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the terms 522 
of this Agreement.  As a result, the normal rule of construction that any 523 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not apply in the 524 
construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 525 

f. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties 526 
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and, save as expressly 527 
provided in this Agreement, supersedes any prior oral or written agreement, 528 
understanding, or representation relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 529 

g. Partial Invalidity.  If, after the date of execution of this Agreement, any provision 530 
of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under present or 531 
future laws effective during the term of this Agreement, such provision shall be 532 
fully severable.  However, in lieu thereof, there shall be added a provision as 533 
similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as may be 534 
possible and be legal, valid and enforceable. 535 
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h. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 536 
benefit of the successors and assigns of the respective Parties to this Agreement.  537 
No Party may assign its interests in or obligations under this Agreement without 538 
the written consent of the other Parties, which consent shall not be unreasonably 539 
withheld or delayed. 540 

i. Waivers.  Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a 541 
continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach either of the same or of 542 
another provision of this Agreement and forbearance to enforce one or more of 543 
the rights or remedies provided in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 544 
waiver of that right or remedy. 545 

j. Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  The prevailing Party in any litigation or other action 546 
to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' 547 
fees, expert witnesses' fees, costs of suit, and other and necessary disbursements 548 
in addition to any other relief deemed appropriate by a court of competent 549 
jurisdiction. 550 

k. Necessary Actions.  Each Party agrees to execute and deliver additional 551 
documents and instruments and to take any additional actions as may be 552 
reasonably required to carry out the purposes of this Agreement. 553 

l. Compliance with Law.  In performing their respective obligations under this 554 
Agreement, the Parties shall comply with and conform to all applicable laws, 555 
rules, regulations and ordinances. 556 

m. Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall not create any right or interest in 557 
any non-Party or in any member of the public as a third party beneficiary. 558 

n. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 559 
each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall 560 
constitute but one and the same instrument. 561 

o. Notices.  All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or 562 
permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing unless provided otherwise in 563 
this Agreement and shall be deemed to have been duly given and received on: (i) 564 
the date of service if served personally or served by facsimile transmission on the 565 
Party to whom notice is to be given at the address(es) provided below, (ii) on the 566 
first day after mailing, if mailed by Federal Express, U.S. Express Mail, or other 567 
similar overnight courier service, postage prepaid, and addressed as provided 568 
below, or (iii) on the third day after mailing if mailed to the Party to whom notice 569 
is to be given by first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid 570 

 571 
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Note On How To Adopt A Special Rule Of Order: 
Special rules of order are permanent rules, specifi c to your group, that guide 
your discussions. The size of the group makes a diff erence in how to adopt 
them. For a body with a large membership, give advance notice of the pro-
posed rules and then take a vote; if two-thirds of those voting are in favor, 
they are adopted. For a smaller membership body like a board, all that is nec-
essary is that a majority of the entire membership of the board vote in favor. 
No advance notice is needed, though circulating the proposals ahead of time 
is likely to increase buy-in from the members.

Sample Special Rule Of Order:
In order to allow for full consideration of issues before decisions are made, the chair 

may at any time propose that our group consider a topic “informally.” In informal 
discussion it is not necessary to have a motion on the fl oor. Members will provide their 
opinions and discuss the topic until the group is ready to propose a formal motion. If 
the group is divided about whether to consider a matt er “informally,” the chair will 
call for a vote; a majority vote will authorize informal discussion. During all discus-
sion, whether formal or informal, no one may speak a second time until everyone who 
wishes to do so has spoken once.

Perspective 11 September/October 2012

Tweak Robert’s Rules To Power Up Discussion
It may sound obvious, but one of the most helpful things 
a board can do is to explore the possibilities around 
an idea or proposal before making a decision. When a 
board is facing a situation or an issue and action seems 
necessary, taking the time to explore diff erent options 
will oft en result in a bett er decision. Many casual boards 
do this routinely. 

More formal boards may feel hampered by the re-
quirement that you must move a motion—a specifi c pro-
posal—before any discussion can begin. Robert’s Rules 
of Order Newly Revised, 11th edition, states that “until a 
matt er has been brought before the assembly in the form 
of a motion proposing a specifi c action, it cannot be de-
bated” (p. 386).

We understand the impulse behind this rule, and we 
have been in many a rambling meeting where asking 
someone to move a specifi c proposal would have helped 
focus the discussion and improve it. Sometimes, how-
ever, the opposite is true. A colleague described a recent 
board meeting in which, in order to start discussion of 
diff erent topics, board members proposed the fi rst mo-
tion that came to mind, which in many cases was not a 
good formulation. Aft er some desultory debate, motions 
were withdrawn or defeated in short order. It was not a 
productive way to proceed—observing the lett er of Rob-
ert’s Rules but breaking the spirit.

Robert specifi cally allows small boards of up to about 
12 people to discuss matt ers without a motion before 
them: “informal discussion of a subject is permitt ed 
while no motion is pending” (p. 488). A small board can 
take advantage of this and many do.

A larger group that uses Robert’s Rules can allow for 
free discussion in the moment sim-
ply by voting to suspend the rules 
(by a two-thirds vote) and discuss a 
given topic without a motion. If the 
need for such discussion comes up 
oft en, the group can adopt a special 
rule of order (a permanent rule) al-
lowing this mode. 

Whichever size of group you 
have, and whatever mode of discus-
sion you choose, we strongly urge 
that your group follow the rule that 
no one may speak a second time 
until everyone who wishes to do 
so has spoken once (p. 379). This 
is the single most signifi cant step 
that any group can take to improve 
its deliberations. When the whole 
group hears from everyone who 

wishes to contribute, the chances of groupthink and self-
censorship are minimized. This rule is oft en ignored, but 
it makes a vital diff erence in ensuring fairness and bett er 
discussion. 

Of course members who don’t wish to speak up are 
not required to do so, but we have found that when the 
introverts, the newcomers, and the quieter folks are giv-
en a fair chance to have their say, the quality of the meet-
ing, and the decisions made, are much improved. 

Another very powerful technique is to hold one full 
round of discussion—hearing from everyone in the 
group in turn—before any motion is moved, or before 
any amendment to a motion is proposed. If possible, 
note member views on a whiteboard or fl ipchart so ev-
eryone can see the points that are made and keep them 
in mind. Writing ideas down so that everyone can see 
them reassures participants that they have been heard 
and saves time by forestalling discussions that seem to 
spin in circles. Gett ing the full picture of members’ indi-
vidual perspectives also provides a broader canvas for 
deliberation, allowing the group to see many diff erent 
aspects “in the round,” so to speak. 

The presider or a member can suggest this idea to 
the group, and with a two-thirds vote, it can be adopted 
either for a specifi c meeting, or as a special rule of or-
der. This method results in much bett er decisions, since 
everyone’s point of view is included and taken into ac-
count. These “tweaks” to Robert’s Rules can power up 
your discussions in a remarkable way.
Writt en by: Ann G. Macfarlane, PRP, Jurassic Parliament, 
www.jurassicparliament.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10 SOUTHERN DIVISION

11
BEAR VALLEY MUTUAL WATER CO.,

12 et al., 1 1-CV-01263-JVS(AN)

13 Plaintiffs,

14 V. ORDERAND JUDGMENT
15 KENNETH L. SALAZAR, et al.,

16 Federal Defendants,

17 CALIFORNIA TROUT, et al.

18 Defendant-Intervenors.

19

20

21 Based upon Defendants’ motion for summary judgment, the oppositions

22 thereto, and it appearing that Defendants’ motion for summary judgment should be

23 granted and that Federal Defendants are entitled to a judgment in their favor,

24 therefore,

25

26

27

28
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IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that judgment shall be

2 entered in favor of Federal Defendants, the above-captioned case shall be

~ dismissed, and each party shall bear its own fees and costs.

4 Dated: This 23d day of October, 2012, in Santa Ana, California.

‘I
/

9 THE HONORABLE JAMES V. SELNA

10 United States District Judge

11

12 PRESENTED BY:

13 IGNACIA S. MORENO,

14 Assistant Attorney General
U.S. Department of Justice

15 Environment & Natural Resources Division

16 KRISTEN BYRNES FLOOM (DC Bar #469615)

17 histen.floom~usdoj.gov

18 ETHAN EDDY (Cal. Bar. #237214)
ethan.eddy~usdoj .gov

19 JAMES A. MAYSONETT (DC Bar/I 463856)

20 james.maysonett~usdoj.gov

2 ANDREA GELATf (Cal. Bar #262617)I andrea.ge1att~usdoj .gov

22 Wildlife & Marine Resources Section

23 Environment & Natural Resources Division
U.S. Department of Justice, P.O. Box 7611

24 Washington, D.C. 20044-7611

25 Tel: (202) 305-0210 Fax: (202) 305-0275
Attorneys for Federal Defendants

26

27

28
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

2 I hereby certify that today, I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk

of the Court using the CM/ECF system, which will send notification of such to the

attorneys of record for Defendant-Intervenors and for Plaintiffs, the latter having
~ agreed to accept service on behalf of all Plaintiffs in this litigation.

6

7 Is! Andrea Gelatt

8 ANDREA GELATT

9

10

11
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17

18
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20

21
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23
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